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elcome to the higger and better PARANOIA!
We've got a new look, more pages, and, yes, we
now cost an extra buck. (But a 4-issue subscrip-
tion is still only $12. For now, anyway.) The
cover also features a new zebra-ike marking
which makes things easier for some of the fine
retail establishments that help us to spread
PARANOIA. | know it’s distracting, but soon you
won't even notice it's there. Kind of like Big
Brother braces. Besides, the llluminati ordered us
to put it there. Something about the Mark of the
Beast...

Speaking of the Mark of the Beast, this issue
features a report on ritual Satanic child abuse
that’s sure to raise a few hairs on your neck.
Plus, we've got the suppressed science of Trevor
James Constable, an extraterrestrial interpretation
of those creepy Virgin Mary sightings, more
shocking facts about the Waco massacre, and the
story behind the Watergate plane crash. (What
Watergate plane crash, you ask? Look inside.)

Well, the man brought down by Watergate,
Richard Nixon, is dead. | think we owe him some
respect, if only because he provided such a mass
of conspiracy fodder: From the Alger Hiss case,
to his race against JFK, to the Bay of Pigs
(which he helped plan as Vice President,) and then
on to Watergate by way of Dallas (as | recall, he
said he thought he was in Dallas that day, but
only to attend a Pepsi cola convention. He must
be one of the few people who couldn’t remember,

From the
Editor's Desk

with certainty, where they were.) For forty years,
Nixon always seemed to be lurking somewhere in
the shadows. And then there was the man’s
paranoia. Legendary paranoia. This is the Presi-
dent who kept an Enemies List, and who reported-
ly had staff members compile a list of all Jews in
a certain government department, fearing that
they were working to sabotage his programs.

And what about the assassination of Mexican
presidential candidate Luis Donaldo Colosio (which
aﬁparently paved the way for a Yale man)? NBC
news seemed almost giddy in its coverage, which
began with a gleeful headline: Conspiracy! (It
must have been a relief to finally be able to re-
port that a political assassination was the result
of a conspiracy. Of course, assassination conspir-
acies don’t happen here. This is America, after
all.) At any rate, the lone nut theory, which was
the initial government response, fell with surpris-
ing swiftness. Likewise, everyone seems to accept
that the plane crash that killed the presidents of
Rwanda and Burundi was no accident. (What? No
incriminating photos of a lone nut Rwandan hold-
ing the surface-to-air missile he purchased from a
mail-order ad?) | guess those “backward” coun-
tries have a lot to learn about our “advanced”
democracy.

Or maybe we have a lot to lgarn
realities of power.

out the
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ave you ever wondered about the possibility
that a few expeditions in search of the
Himalayan abominable snowmen (yetis)

might, in fact, be espionage operations aimed
at spying on Chinese military and political activities in Tibet? My
examination of that question has taken me down many paths new,
perhaps, to a cryptozoologist, but certainly the research has been
worthy of my time as well as enlightening. Investigators of hidden
animals owe it to the field to look behind the casual press releases of
yet another new trek in pursuit of some faraway monster. We should
begin to ask ourselves, are we being used, in some kind of elaborate
cover story, for politically motivated covert operations?

Historical Background

Individuals important to cryptozoological chronicles have been
involved with secret intelligence networks for over two hundred years.
For example, in 1769, South American reports of the five-foot-tall
ape-like creature called the didi were collected by the botanist,
naturalist and doctor, Edward Bancroft (Heuvelmans, 1959). Bancroft
also called himself Jacobus Van Zandt (Sanderson, 1961), and was an
espionage agent. As | have written elsewhere:

Edward Bancroft, internationally known as an expert on tropical plants,
is an interesting figure in cryptopolitical history...Benjamin Franklin had
sponsored Bancroft for membership in the Royal Society of London. When
Franklin was at the American Embassy in Paris, Edward Bancroft,
Franklin’s friend and chief assistant, organized a cell of British spies,
beginning in 1772. During his sojourn in Paris, Bancroft left weekly
dispatches for the British written in invisible ink between the lines of love
letters of a ‘Mr. Richardson’ and placed in a bottle in a hollow tree at the
Tuileries. Franklin, who was involved in occult circles, such as the Lodge
of the Nine Sisters in Paris and Sir Francis Dashwood's Hell-fire Club
outside of London, is viewed by Richard Deacon in his A History of
British Secret Service as merely part of the British intelligence network
set up by Bancroft and others (Coleman, 1985).

Furthermore, Dr. Bancroft's associate, Sir Francis Dashwood, was
thought to have traveled to Calcutta and Bengal (Silver and Lasky,
1977), thus placing him in the sphere of Tibet, the location of our
story.

Tibet, Pandas and Spies

Tibet is the focus of this article’s investigations. The recent history
of this snowy Asian plateau—fenced in by the Himalayas to its south
and surrounded by the body of China to its north and east—is central
to gaining insights into the interplay between the cryptozoological and
cryptopolitical. Before we delve too deeply into the late 1950s and
early 1960s web of yeti searches and secret intelligence, let us step
back 60 years to the days when the giant panda was still a crypto-
zoological wonder, quickly becoming a zoological prize. Tibet's lands
guarded the secret of the giant panda from the West until the numer-
ous American expeditions of the 1930s began to return with speci-
mens for natural history museums. The first expedition to obtain a
dead giant panda for mounting was led by Kermit Roosevelt, Teddy's
son. The second expedition to kill pandas was headed by Brooke Dolan
of the Philadelphia Academy of Natural Sciences during 1930-1932
(Morris, 1966; Perry, 1969). Interestingly, early giant panda collector
Kermit Roosevelt's son, Kermit or “Kim,” was later involved in Wild Bill
Donovan'’s Office of Strategic Services (0SS), and the postwar Central
Intelligence Agency (CIA). Kim Roosevelt is credited with living an

by Loren Coleman

almost James Bond-like existence and being the one man responsible
for the 1953 CIA coup against and overthrow of President Mossadegh
and his Iranian government. In 1942, when the United States decided
they needed a post in Tibet to assure the Dalai Lama of American
friendship, they picked the 0SS for the task. Chosen for this specific
assignment were the agents Lieutenant Colonel llia Tolstoy (emigre
grandson of the famous Russian novelist) and, guess who—Captain
Brooke Dolan, the accomplished adventurer, Far Eastern explorer, and
giant panda hunter. In later years, Tolstoy would become a general
manager of Florida's Marineland, a movie producer, and cultivator of
Bahamian sponge beds (Smith, 1972).

What better “psywar” technique
than to search for and promote a
variety of positions on strange and
bizarre subjects, be they yetis, giant
salamanders, or lake monsters?

During the secret mission, Tolstoy and Dolan had first flown into
India before traveling through Nepal to the Forbidden City of Lhasa,
Tibet. There they exchanged gifts with the Dalai Lama, and thus
cemented the American intelligence community’s toehold in the region.
From Lhasa, their “caravan set out across unexplored Eastern Tibet
toward Chungking, studying the potential route for a military road and
noting on their map the sites of possible airfields” (Ford, 1970). At
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Chungking, Tolstoy and Dolan would have no doubt run into an 0SS
staff member and jolly amateur chef named Julia McWilliams Child.
Today, Julia Child is best known as public television's “French Chef”
(Smith, 1972). Upon their return to the States, Tolstoy and Dolan
secretly received the Legion of Merit.

Further Examples

0SS veteran Leonard Francis Clark mentioned being in Tibet as the
first foreigner since Tolstoy. Clark went on an expedition to Tibet in
the late 1940s in an attempt to rally the Chinese Moslems against the
Chinese Communists. In his book The Marching Wind, he made
mention of abominable snowmen and apparently believed in them.
Other 0SS-connected men have had similarly strange links. Donovan'’s
Colonel Merian Cooper would, in 1942, become Chief of Staff of
General Claire Chennault's Flying Tigers in China (Smith, 1972). The
Flying Tigers would evolve into the CIA-run Civil Air Transport (CAT),
and later the CIA's personal airline, Air America (Leary, 1984). It was
Cooper who was the adventurer and the writer/producer/director of the
first King Kong movie (1933) starring Fay Wray. Peter Tompkins is
another well-known former 0SS man whose autobiographical book, A

Y

Tibet
Spy in Rome, was followed years later by his seemingly offbeat
bestsellers on obelisks, pyramids and the secret life of plants.
[Tompkins’ co-author for the latter work was Christopher Bird, thought
by some to also have an intelligence agency background (Sanderson,
1970). After his stint with Donovan’s special “psychological warriors”
division (involved with operation TORCH), Tompkins was to head the
entire American World War Il intelligence network in Rome. As the war

came to a close, Tompkins was sent to Berlin to begin spying on the
Soviets (Smith, 1972; Ford, 1970).]

Tom Slick: Beginning Hints
The vortex of intelligence operatives connected with cryptozoology
seems to be especially concentrated around the mysterious figure of
Tom Slick, forgotten Texas oil millionaire and yeti searcher. Slick's life
ended at the young age of forty-six and his early death only intensified
the mystery of his life. At about 6 p.m., on October 8, 1962, along

with Dallas pilot Shelly Sudderth, Slick was killed in a midair explosion
over the skies of Montana. In my book, Tom Slick and the Search
for the Yeti (1989), | have detailed the theories surrounding his death.
In summary, the questions boil down to this one: was the plane torn
apart because of weather, faulty structural design or a homb? On a
list found in Slick’s pocket was the word “bombs” written alongside
other less sinister notations regarding his alleged hunting trip. Was he
transporting bombs, or merely remembering the insect repellent? Slick
was a man who avoided publicity. Was he involved in some way with
the intelligence network? What hints exist in the record that there
may be something to this notion?

Slick had many opportunities to travel to such locales as the Soviet
Union, South America, and India, and was in many international
networks. From what | was able to reconstruct of Slick’s life, his
friends included John Foster Dulles, the Secretary of State during the
Eisenhower years and brother of Allen Dulles (Director of the Central
Intelligence Agency), as well as Jawaharlal Nehru, Henry Cabot Lodge,
Jimmy Stewart, Norman Cousins, and other well-known figures. Slick
also met many people in his role as a member of the National Advisory
Board of the United World Federalists (Coleman, 1989). Founded in
1947, the United World Federalists’ first president was the intellectual
Cord Meyer. But suddenly in 1950, around the time that China was
advancing on Tibet, Meyer left the organization’s head post in the
hands of liberal Alan Cranston (presently the senior United States
Senator from California), and joined the CIA’s covert operations
division. A close associate was quoted as saying: “It was a great
surprise to his friends. He was not the CIA type. He was a world
government man” (Smith, 1972). In 1954, Meyer was named Chief of
the CIA's Covert Action operations. Hardened by political battles with
Joseph McCarthy and by personal tragedies (one of Meyer’s sons died
in an automobile accident and his wife was killed by an unknown
assailant), years later a friend would say that Cord Meyer “got Cold
Warized” (Smith, 1972). What level of ongoing contact did Slick have
with Meyer? No hints exist in the public record. But was Slick
somewhere in the background?

Slick, Saipan and the CIA

Tom Slick’s military record is not too detailed in the archives | was
able to examine. He served in the Navy, first at the War Production
Office in Washington, D.C., then went on to Chile, Hawaii, Saipan, and
occupied Japan (Coleman, 1989). In Saipan, Slick wrote in his short
resume, he was a commanding officer of an oil tank farm. The
Japanese built a naval base at Saipan when it became their territory
in 1919 and maintained it until the United States captured the site in
July, 1944. What has only recently become known is that the Central
Intelligence Agency’s “Special Operations Division had ‘a home away
from home’ under Navy cover on the Pacific island of Saipan”
(Marchetti and Marks, 1974). In the early 1950s, Koreans and
Taiwanese were the recipients of the CIA's advanced training on
Saipan, and apparently starting in 1959, Tibetans came too. “The CIA
facility used a military designation, Naval Technical Training Unit, for
its cover. Recruits were flown in at night by C-47 aircraft like those
of Civil Air Transport. New arrivals were blindfolded on the ground en
route to the base. But the CIA facility had been built on the highest
mountain on the island, with surroundings plainly visible to the
trainees” (Prados, 1986). What was the extent of Tom Slick’s
involvement with the intelligence community’s early development of
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the Saipan training center? We don’t know. But one wonders—was
the oil tank farm merely part of a possible cover story?

CAT, CIA and Slick Airways

Incredibly, little discussion has ever been made of the similar
evolutionary beginnings of Chennault’s and the CIA’s Civil Air
Transport and Air America, and the origins of Earl and Tom Slick’s
Slick Airways, Inc. Claire L. Chennault, who was born in Texas in
1890 and trained as a military aviator at San Antonio’s world-famous
Kelly Field, was destined to embody adventure and derring-do. After
years of rebuilding the Chinese Air Force, Chennault took command of
the Chinese-based American Volunteer Group (AVG) during the summer
of 1941. The AVG (or Flying Tigers as they soon came to be known),
was initially created to insure
the safety of the land supply

research and yeti investigations? In the literature about the unknown
war between the Chinese and the Tibetans, there is a mysterious
episode concerning an apparent CIA agent who comes to a famous
Indian border town to discuss setting up an arms supply line with the
Tibetans:

It was in the guise of a tourist that an American came to
Kalimpong in the spring of 1955...The American who came in 1955 may
have been a diplomat but he was most probably a spy. He is not further
identified by the man who tells the story, George N. Patterson, a Scottish
missionary who had worked in eastern Tibet, spoke the language, wrote
several books about the country, and resided in Kalimpong (Prados, 1986).

By 1958-1959, Tom Slick was running the expeditions in pursuit of
the abominable snowmen from
his home in San Antonio. Peter

route from Burma to China.
These were the famed pilots
who “flew the Hump over the
Himalayas,” protecting the
transportation of valuable
supplies (Leary, 1984).

At the end of World War II,
Chennault set about to create a
Chinese-based American-owned
airline, the Civil Air Transport
(CAT). Meanwhile, former members of the AVG in the United States
decided to establish two pioneer air freight companies. Robert
Prescott, one of Chennault’s men, was to head one, Flying Tigers, Inc.
The other company was Slick Airways, Inc., which originally started
as an idea of Earl Frates Slick, but was something in which Tom Slick
quickly became interested. Hiring pilots Earl had once worked with,
and buying planes from the military, Slick Airways was the number
one air cargo transporter in the 1950s (Davies, 1972; Business
Week, 1951; Coleman,1989; Leary, 1984).

In 1950, the CIA secretly purchased Chennault’s CAT, and then in
1959, CAT became Air America (Leary, 1984). Other airlines that are
connected to the CIA have been mentioned in the public record, such
as Air Asia, Southern Air Transport, and Intermountain Aviation, but
the CIA had retained the right to delete at least one airline from an
expose of their proprietary organizations (Marchetti and Marks, 1974).
How deeply involved was Slick Airways in this interwoven network of
CIA companies and contracts? We do not have a full answer yet, but
intriguing hints exist. One individual who evidences a direct connection
between Slick Airways and CAT is Robert Rousselot, who worked for
both (Leary, 1989). Rousselot was highly regarded by the Central
Intelligence Agency:

Chief Pilot Rousselot was the key link between CAT and the CIA for
covert missions...Rousselot took charge of operational planning and
selection of crew. The chief pilot looked for capable, responsible
individuals, who would complete a mission if at all possible but would
abort when necessary...As one former case officer recalled, ‘Rousselot
always delivered” (Leary, 1984).

Yeti Searching and Covert Operations?

How involved, therefore, was Tom Slick in covert operations? Did
the search for the abominable snowmen serve merely as a cover? We
know, for example, Slick was in the foothills of the Himalayas many
times throughout the mid-1950s. Was he there only for mind science

Since the time of Tom Slick’s first
official yeti reconnaissance...the
rumors of his expeditions’
involvement in spying have been
rampant

and Bryan Byrne were Slick’s
agents in the field. Most of
the time, the Byrnes were not
in the field. Instead, they
would stay in West Bengal,
namely in Calcutta, Darjeeling,
or other eastern Indian cities.
One West Bengal city,
Kalimpong, the site of the
meeting between the mystery
man and George Patterson, was actually viewed as a "spy center.”
The New York Times of April 4, 1959 detailed Prime Minister
Nehru’s one-hour news conference held to answer Chinese Communist
charges that Kalimpong was being used as the base for Tibetan
subversive activities. Nehru said that the city was often described as
a "nest of spies of innumerable nationalities,” and he had been told by
an informed source that there were "more spies in Kalimpong than the
rest of the inhabitants.” The Prime Minister continued, stating that
after the Communists took over in China all kinds of people went to
Kalimpong under assumed identities—"some as technical people, some
as bird watchers, some as journalists and some as just scenery
admirers.”

Ornithology and Espionage

It appears that birdwatching and spying were never far apart in the
secret world of intelligence operatives. Former CIA director James
Schlesinger and covert actions expert Desmond FitzGerald enjoyed both
pastimes. Birdwatching could be a useful cover. Take, for example, a
person like S. Dillon Ripley. Ripley, a noted ornithologist and postwar
Secretary of the Smithsonian Institution in Washington, was the chief
of the 0SS counterintelligence branch for southeast Asia.

Film fiction has picked up this thread. In the film, The Dogs of
War, based on Frederick Forsythe's novel about covert operations in
an African nation, the hero, played by Christopher Walken, goes to this
country, disguised as a birdwatcher, to do a reconnaissance for a
mission. The Walken character is shown reading an African bird field
guide on the flight over, to familiarize himself with the names of the
local birds.

The most famous (though fictional) agent in modern popular
literature is based on this ornithology-espionage connection, and the
creator of this character has links to our yeti story. Peter Byrne,
thanks to Tom Slick, met with many “former” intelligence individuals in
West Bengal, including World War |l British Intelligence officer lan

&

—



NEATPAGEINFO:id=7F8016CB-FE12-4C9E-AEFA-189A4DD30805


Fleming. Fleming was to become famous for his series of fictional spy
books featuring the British secret agent 007, “James Bond.” And, of
course, as most people know, the name “"James Bond” was actually
the real name of the author of the book The Birds of the West
Indies lifted by Fleming for use in his novels. The original "007,” by
the way, was the English mathematician, astrologer and occultist Dr.
John Dee (1527-1608). Dee served as Queen Elizabeth’s personal spy.
"007" was, in fact, Dee’s code number, and was adopted by lan
Fleming for "James Bond” (Rosenblatt, 1989).

he networks and connections between the
1950s explorers, ornithologists, crypto-
zoologists and spies are under-studied, yet

revealing. lan Fleming was the brother of
Peter Fleming, explorer and writer. One of the latter Fleming's most
remarkable books is Brazilian Adventure, a work in the tradition of
Percy Fawcett. Another classic is Fleming’s Bayonets to Lhasa, an
account of the British invasion of Tibet in 1904. Peter Fleming was a
school-years buddy of Ralph lzzard, Gerald Russell, and Ivan
Sanderson—all individuals deeply involved in the search for the yeti
and, to varying degrees, friends with Tom Slick. lzzard led the 1954
Daily Mail expedition to the Himalayas in search of yeti, Russell was
a member of lzzard's 1954 trek and headed the 1958 Slick-Johnson
Snowman expedition to eastern Nepal, and Sanderson was involved in
all manner of cryptozoological investigations (including an African
expedition with Russell in the 1930s) and writings, authoring the
classic Abominable Snowmen in 1961. Sanderson was a consultant
member of Slick’s 1960-1962 search for Bigfoot, the so-called Pacific
Northwest Expedition headed by Bob Titmus, then Peter Byrne.

Sanderson and Coon: Spies and Cryptozoologists

Ivan T. Sanderson was a commander in the British Naval
Intelligence Service from 1940-1945, assigned to the Caribbean
because of his zoological experiences there. The famed crypto-
zoologist's wartime connections to spying apparently did not end in
1945. Sanderson gives a hint that some of his information sources
remained in the realm of the intelligence network in one passage in his
book Abominable Snowmen. Therein Sanderson (1961) details two
curious encounters with the giant hairy Tok, given to him by “a young
American, then in the service of his country, who had been born in the
Shan States and brought up there, his parents having been mission-
aries.” Sanderson "was asked not to publish” the man’s name.

This individual, it appears, was probably a member of the
extraordinary Young family who were responsible for setting up the
Burma Baptist Mission. The Sanderson contact was, no doubt, William
Young, who was:

...perhaps one of the most effective agents ever, [who] was born in
the Burrnese Shan States, where his grandfather had been missionary to
the hill tribes. Arriving in Burma at the turn of the century, Grandfather
Young opened a Baptist mission in Kengtung City and began preaching to
the nearby Lahu hill tribes. Although they understood little of his Christian
message, a local oracle had once prophesied the coming of a white deity,
and the Lahu decided that Reverend Young was God. His son, Harold,
later inherited his divinity and used it to organize Lahu intelligence
gathering forays into southern China for the CIA during the 1950s. When
William was looking for a job in 1958 his father recommended him to the
CIA, and he was hired (McCoy, 1972).

“a»

in the book Uninvited Visitors, Sanderson (1967) discusses how
he was called to the Pentagon for a briefing; this is an odd event for
someone who supposedly has no official ties to the government.
Sanderson appears to have maintained an open line to some members
of the espionage community.

Peter Byrne and Tom Slick also had contact with elements of
American intelligence. One of Tom Slick’s earliest yeti consultants was
Carleton Coon, professor of anthropology and former Office of
Strategic Services agent. Coon was consulting for the Slick yeti
expeditions from the very beginning having been at one of the first
meetings attended by Tom Slick’s assistant Cathy Maclean, Peter
Byrne, and Life's Jim Greenfield in Darjeeling India, on January 16,
1957.

Within espionage circles, Coon’s work for the 0SS was legendary.
One of the first missions of Donovan’s spy organization was operation
TORCH, the invasion of North Africa, involving, as mentioned above,
agents such as Peter Tompkins. Carleton Coon was in charge of
TORCH and the affair was such a success that it insured the future of
the 0SS. 0SS’s leadership, who were later connected to the Central
Intelligence Group, then the Central Intelligence Agency, would never
forget Coon for his contributions to the budding American intelligence
community.

Gambit, Inc. of Ipswich, Massachusetts (Coon'’s residence in his late
years) published the small book, A North Africa Story: The
Anthropologist as 0SS Agent 1941-1943 by Carleton S. Coon, in
1980. It is filled with Coon’s 1940s writings of his exploits, with
historical background supplied by the editors at Gambit. The book is
an interesting insight into the dual life that Coon led. And the mostly
code-named characters along the way hint at the overlaps that intrigue
us, as well. There's “Levy,” for example, a young Frenchman who
Coon did not like because of the way he treated the Arabs Coon
noted, nevertheless, that this individual “claims to have been a member
of a Himalayan mountain climbing expedition.”

A North Africa Story details Coon’s thoughts on the kind of
legitimate front that worked best for 0SS agents during wartime.

"The question of cover is one that can only be settled by experience.
We have had, however, enough experience to determine a few
principles. There are two things good cover should avoid: tying the
agent down with cover activities, and making him conspicuous,” Coon
wrote. He went on to make some further points:

State Department cover is good in that it allows the agent to go
places where he could not otherwise get; it does not take up too much
of his time. It is bad in that he is conspicuous and constantly under
enemy surveillance. They undoubtedly know he is an agent, but don’t dare
harm him in neutral territory....Special civilian covers are-useful only for
special jobs of brief duration....To be an archaeologist is silly, even if the
agent is really a well-known professional archaeologist in peace time. All
archaeologists are inevitably suspected of being agents anyhow even in
peace time; and who cares about archaeology in wartime? An
archaeologist may be very useful for his knowledge of the country, its
people, languages, etc., but he must not pretend that he is still an
archaeologist in war” (Coon, 1980).

Coon used the cover of the diplomatic corps during World War II.
Carleton Coon tied his public exit from the 0SS to the time that the
organization was dishanded at the end of the war. Many former 0SS
agents, of course, were later employed by the operations division of
the CIA. Was Coon one of them? Did he change his mind and allow his
anthropological career to dovetail with some clandestine activities
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after 1945? Coon always seemed to be working
right on the fringes of the Communist bloc coun-
tries, in Iran, in Afghanistan, and so forth. Or in
India and Nepal, near Tibet.

The Dalai Lama, Slick Denials and the
CIA

While a great deal of information has surfaced
over the years about the Central Intelligence
Agency's worldwide covert operations activities,
little is known about how deeply the CIA was
involved in Tibet in the 1950s and 1960s. "It is
impossible at this writing,” John Prados noted in
his 1986 book, Presidents’ Secret Wars, "to give
a detailed analysis of the Washington decision
making for Tibet. The appropriate records remain
security classified. If not for the courts, in fact, the
entire discussion of Tibet in the Marchetti and
Marks book, The CIA and the Cult of Intelli-
gence, would have been deleted by Agency
censors.”

We are forced to read accounts of the conflict
in Tibet closely to get some insights into how
involved some of the yeti searchers may have been.
Let's start with one critical incident, the escape of
the Dalai Lama from Tibet. (During 1989, his Holiness the XIVth Dalai
Lama was awarded the Nobel Peace Prize.) There are denials, for
example, of the rumors circulating that Tom Slick and Peter Byrne
were responsible, in some fashion, for the safe passage of the Dalai
Lama from Lhasa. (Since the time of Tom Slick’s first official yeti
reconnaissance of eastern Nepal in 1957, in which he was actually a
member of the trek, the rumors of his expeditions’ involvement in
spying have been rampant. The New York Times even saw fit to
publish an article reporting on the Russians’ promotion of this story in
an item entitled "Soviet Sees Espionage in U. S. Snowman Hunt.” The
April 27, 1957 piece claimed Slick was behind an effort to subvert the
Chinese, and free Tibet.)

What can we find in the record about the Dalai Lama's rescue?
Who was behind the exit or with the Dalai Lama? Fletcher Prouty, an
Air Force colonel who supervised secret air missions for the Office of
Special Operations, has written: “This fantastic escape and its major
significance have been buried in the lore of the CIA as one of those
successes that are not talked about. The Dalai Lama would have never
been saved without the CIA“ (Prouty, 1973). On March 17, 1959,

in three groups, the Dalai Lama, his immediate family and senior
advisors escaped from Lhasa. Tenzin Gyatso [the Dalai Lama] was
disguised as a common soldier of the guard....The best information [about
the fleeing Dalai Lamal came from the CIA..The CIA was so well
informed because it had furnished an American radio operator, who
traveled with the Dalai Lama’s party....There may have been other CIA
agents with the party as well (Prados, 1986).

Who were these individuals? George Patterson might know.
Remember, he is the guy who had the mysterious meeting with "an
American tourist” during 1955 in which parts of the CIA's war in
Tibet were mapped out. Patterson, who used the cover of being a
missionary (but drank, smoked and chased women with the best of
the guys), was part of a unique foray into Tibet in 1964. Setting out
secretly with Adrian Cowell, a British filmmaker, Patterson took off

Sir Edmund Hillary grasps an alleged yeti scalp, which he did not believe to be authentic.
Hillary's famous yeti (i.e. Abominable Snowman) expedition of 1960 is thought to have
served as a cover for Western spying on Chinese missile launches

from Nepal to coordinate and film an attack on a Chinese convoy by
Tibetan Khamba commandos. Patterson and Cowell were successful,
but upon their return they were briefly jailed in India, and their film
was suppressed and not shown for two years. Now here’s the
interesting part. Who helped them get into Tibet? None other than
Peter Byrne, Tom Slick’s man in Nepal.

And who has written the most concerning the Patterson incident
without saying too much in depth about it? None other than Michael
Peissel. In his hook, The Secret War in Tibet (1973), Peissel
mysteriously kept his references to the CIA to only four small men-
tions in this 258-page book. Peissel discussed a good deal about the
secret war in Tibet but strangely never mentioned some amazing
points now well-known (due to recent CIA limited releases of infor-
mation), such as the fact that the small kingdom of Mustang was the
CIA-run base of Tibetan guerrilla operations. Peissel revealed that he
first went to the area in the spring of 1959 with “a letter of recom-
mendation from Thubtan Norbu, the brother of the Dalai Lama, to the
Prime Minister of Bhutan....| was off to meet Jigme Dorji, the Prime
Minister of Bhutan, in the small border town of Kalimpeng” (Peissel,
1966). We, of course, understand a little bit more about the impor-
tance of Kalimpong in the espionage game, as was mentioned above.

Also, we now have some facts about Thubtan Norbu. The eldest
brother of the Dalai Lama was connected to the “American Society for
a Free Asia,” a CIA-funded organization that sponsored a series of
visits to and lectures in the United States by Norbu, beginning in 1956
(Prados, 1986). Secretly, the Dalai Lama’s family was very involved
with the CIA in fighting the Chinese. Gyalo Thondup, the Dalai Lama's
second-eldest brother, based in Darjeeling, established an intelligence
gathering operation with the CIA in 1951. Six years later, he upgraded
it to an advanced ClA-trained guerrilla unit whose members were
introduced to commando techniques on Guam, for example, and then

continued page 36
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sudden flash of light and
tremor of excitement in
the crowd made me turn
and look in the direction
of the sun. Almost to my horror, |
witnessed what so many have
called the ‘dance of the sun’—the
sun moving back and forth as
though on a yo-yo string, its
central incandescent white disc
surrounded by spinning circles of
yellow, green, and red light, for all
the world like a Catherine-wheel
firework. All around us, people
were on their knees praying. To
my regret, | felt no such impulse. |
had no sense of the numinous,
only of the passing strange...| felt
that somewhere there must be a
rational explanation.”

Although unrecognized as such by its
author, the preceding description of the
recent apparitions of the Virgin Mary at
Medjugorje, Yugoslavia, penned by
Mary Craig in her book Spark From
Heaven, reveals a curious connection
between religious phenomena and UFO
manifestations, as do the phenomena
documented at Fatima, Portugal in
1917.

For Those That Believe
Dr. Jean Mundy, studying the
apparitions at Fatima and believing
since childhood that they were divine

Virgin Mary sightin
prophecy, ind UFOS

by Joan D’Arc
with Special Thanks to George Andrews

revelations, had fully accepted that
three children, Lucia, Jacinta, and
Francisco, and approximately 70,000
adults, clearly witnessed the Blessed
Mother’s apparition. In high school,
she states, “[she] would have felt it
impertinent to ask the good Nuns for
newspaper reports of those strange
events or for interviews with eye
witnesses.” She believed in the motto:
“For those that believe, no explanation
is necessary. For those that do not
believe, no explanation is possible.”
However, later in life, after receiving a
Ph.D. from Catholic University, she
viewed the video The Miracle of
Fatima: Documentation which inter-
viewed, years after the event, three eye
witnesses to the miraculous appear-
ances at Fatima: Carolina and Maria
Dos Santos, sisters of Lucia, and a
brother of Jacinta.

Their memories of the event were
still fresh. As the translator described
the event, Carolina stated: “it seemed
the sun was saying goodbye to the sky
and coming down like a saucer singing
and working, and coming down, and
stopped only when it almost reached
the ground...We saw a shadow and it
was like lightning.” Jacinta’s brother
stated: “The sun, like a disc in the sky,
trembled, and made brusque

a»

movements outside of all cosmic law.”
The local newspaper reported at the
time: “The sun zigzagged for twelve
minutes, and then plunged down,
almost to the ground, and then it
suddenly reversed itself. It was seen by
witnesses as far away as 40 kilometers.
Certainly beyond all cosmic laws, were
the sudden trembling movements of the
sun, and dancing as it were, before the
astonished multitude who gazed in awe,
with spectators crying “Miracle!
Miracle!” Other witnesses saw a
second sun spinning and giving off
fiery fingers of light extending across
the sky.

That's No Lady

Estimates of the crowd watching this
spectacle vary in the reports from
50,000 to 70,000, but in all the reports
it was only Lucia, now Sister Maria
das Dolores, who claims she saw a
bright light in the form of a woman in
white. The “Lady” urged the children
to keep her presence a secret and to
continue to meet on the 13th of every
month until October, when she would
reveal her identity. Lucia concluded it
was the Blessed Mother.

No one else, including the other two
children, saw this apparition. As Lucia
herself wrote in her memoirs:
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Opening her hands, she [the Blessed Virgin]
made them reflect on the sun, and as she
ascended, the reflection of her own light
continued to be projected on the sun itself...|
wanted to call the attention of the crowd to
the sun. | was moved to do so under the
guidance of an interior impulse.

The Mother of God, writes Dr. Jean
Mundy, did not appear to thousands of
devout Catholics in 1917 in Portugal.
Only little Lucia Dos Santos saw what
she claimed was the Blessed Virgin,
while thousands of others saw onky a
fiery disk in the sky moving contrary
to all known physical laws.

“Miracle” at Medjugorje

In his book Extra-terrestrial Friends
and Foes (IllumiNet Press) George
Andrews discusses many recent
apparitions of the Virgin Mary, like the
one in Cameroon, which he claims had
numerous indications of UFO involve-
ment. However, he states, the most
persistent and well-known of these
manifestations have occurred in the
little village of Medjugorje in Yugo-
slavia. There, six youngsters between
the ages of 10 and 17 have had
ongoing contacts with the Virgin since
1981. One of these six now has a cyst
on her brain, and has refused medical
treatment stating that the Blessed
Mother wants her suffering offered to
God.

These recent phenomena at Med-
jugorje resemble the occurrence at
Fatima in 1917. One witness describ-
ing the miracle of the sun claims: “It

came down out of the sky. The center
of it was like a white host circled with
gold and a path led down to us.”
Although people stared at the sun for
30 minutes, their eyes were not
harmed.

The Australian edition of People
magazine recently

camouflaged.

Zone of Strangeness
Dr. Mundy, now a psychologist, has
compared descriptions taken from
Secret Prophecy of Fatima Revealed
with suggested stages of the contempo-
rary alien abduction scenario. Analyzed
as such, some

featured an article
about a Melbourne
millionaire who
took his video
camera to
Medjugorje and
captured on film
“an immense green
disc obscuring the
sun, then pulsing as
it floods the sky
with bands of
colored light.”
Many of the witnesses at Medjugorje
describe the sun “dancing in the sky.”
Also reportedly seen was a “grayish
disc” slightly smaller than the
circumference of the sun, which
appeared to draw near the earth,
pulsate, spin, and change colors.
George Andrews has an interesting
explanation for this phenomenon:

» It seems to me that the occupants of that
grayish disc must have become overconfident of
the gullibility of the spectators they were
performing for, and neglected to align the disc
correctly between the sun and the spectators. A
single sloppy maneuver can destroy the effect
of a whole series of impeccable performances,

in this case allowing a witness to perceive and
describe what had been so long and carefully

“It came down out
of the. sky

and a path Ied
down to us.”

interesting parallels
emerge. For instance,
in the Captured stage,
the children at Fatima
were herding the
sheep when suddenly
there were two
flashes of lightning.
They looked up and
saw a globe of light,
and eventually Lucia
sighted the figure of a
woman. During this
psychic intrusion they were “frozen
with fright,” as is reported in alien
abduction cases. In this case, capture
can also be termed “rapture.”

Similarly, in a stage called Zone of
Strangeness, a “twilight zone” of
strange events isolates the witness.
During this experience, it seems to the
witness that natural law has been
suspended and reality is dreamlike.
The motif of secrecy runs throughout
abductions, as though they are admon-
ished not to tell; even couples abducted
together do not discuss the event
between themselves. As will be dis-
cussed later, to this day there is a
secret still held by one of the three
children at Fatima.

In the stage best understood as Time
Lapse, the witness’s memory of the
abduction blanks out and he or she
suffers paralysis or uncharacteristic
behavior following the event. In this
respect, the introverted boy, Francisco,
became an extrovert after the Miracle,
Lucia refused to reveal many details of
the Lady’s requests for ten years, and
Jacinta, disobeying her parents, return-
ed quite often to the grotto, neglecting
her flock of sheep. This compulsive
return to the scene is prevalent in con-
temporary abduction cases.

In a stage called Procurement, a

_The

Look, up in the sky...! A crowd of 50,000 to
70,000 witnessed 'the dance of the sun' at
Fatima in October, 1917
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beam of light strikes the witness,
capturing his or her total attention.
This drawing force pulls the human
into a one on one meeting, procuring
or grabbing the human in order to
instruct, reassure, pacify and control
the abductee. As seen in film footage
of the children at Fatima, they were
struck so inanimate that onlookers
pricked them with pins and otherwise
tried to draw them from a strange
compelling force without

ity, which she is not allowed to share
with others.

The Ultimate Scam: Third Prophecy
at Fatima

Of the three prophecies Mary of
Sorrows was told to reveal, the first
two were a plea for people to turn
away from sin and save the world from
destruction. She was warned: “Many
nations will disappear from the face of
the Earth.” The Third Prophecy at

success. They remained look-
ing straight up into the sky,
with heads tilted back and
necks bent like ostriches, their
eyes glazed over with religious
“rapture.”

While some abductees are
subjected to an Examination
stage, some are not subjected
to a medical exam, but instead
feel that they have been given a
message which they are to reveal to
others at a preordained time. The
children at Fatima do not report being
taken anywhere for an examination,
but appear to have skipped this stage
in the place of becoming Messengers.

The children at Fatima were
instructed on many details, among
them to say their rosary every day in
order to obtain the end of the war.
Typical of the Conference stage of
abduction, they were told, “In
October Our Lord will come, as well
as Our Lady of Dolors and Our Lady
of Carmel. Saint Joseph will appear
with the Child Jesus to bless the
world.”

Abductions seldom end when the
spaceship sails off, and may leave the
witness “scarred for life.” The lives
of all who witnessed the sightings of
the Blessed Mother at Fatima, as well
as Medjugorje, were permanently
altered. Lucia later became Sister
Maria das Dolores (Mary of Sorrows)
as a direct result of the “visitations.”
Typical of modern alien contact is the
Return stage, the continuing visitor
experience. In fact, Sister Maria, now
living in the convent of the Displaced
Carmelites, has continued to experience
pre-cognition of deaths and world
events and has had visions of Jesus
Christ. Also revealed to her was the
secret mystery of the Most Holy Trin-

Fatima was to be opened in 1960, and
given by the Bishop of Fatima to the
reigning Pope. This event took place
behind closed doors, after which, it is
reported, the Cardinals filed out of the
room with “a look cf horror on their
faces.”

The Catholic Church decided not to
reveal the final secret of Fatima [see
sidebar, “The Final Prophecy?”]
Rumor has it that Pope John Paul I had
decided to reveal the final secret of
Fatima but, although in perfect health,
he died suddenly the night before he

«<»

Rumor has it that Pope John
Paul | had decided to reveal the
final secret [of Fatima] but,
although in perfect health, he
died suddenly the night before

was to reveal it. Requests for an autop-
sy were denied. What could cause the
look of horror on the faces of the
Cardinals when they learned the final
secret of Fatima? Dr. Jean Mundy
believes it was not the threat of war, or
even nuclear disaster, stating that
humans are “strangely accustomed to
large scale dying.” She adds: “Death,
collectively, is banal. Besides, the first
two prophecies were about war and no
one squelched the message or the
messenger.” The stark horror,
she suggests, is a complete
disruption of a belief system. It
would conceivably constitute the
most sacred betrayal to believe
that the Roman Catholic Church
was established by Jesus Christ,
the Son of God, and to learn
after a lifetime of devotion that
Jesus was an “alien” being. It is the
ultimate scam.

If the logical conclusion is that
otherworld beings staged an elabo-
rate demonstration involving a
Catholic deity, the next progression
is to question why they needed such
a complex and time-consuming plan
to relay secret messages to the
Cardinals of the Catholic Church?
We must also presume that if the
Miracle of Fatima in 1917 was
staged, then the revelation in 1960
was meant to give credit to the scam
operators, presumably a race of alien
beings. Another possibility involves
the occult aspect of UFO pheno-
mena. Does the “fallen angel” named
Satan have license to fly such a
mobile? Some believe that the Lord
of the Underworld is involved with
this scheme, especially since, as
follows, there is abundant proof that

appearances of the Virgin are
associated with war as a sacrificial
blood rite.

Sacrificial Lambs

Mary Craig, writing in her book
Spark From Heaven, brings to light
some religious historical facts which
contain a significant clue to the
Medjugorje “sightings.” George
Andrews comments:

Long before Yugoslavia became a nation, a

struggle for dominance went on between
Croatian Catholics and Orthodox Christian
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Serbians in the Balkans. During the early part
of the Second World War, the influence of the
Catholic Church was aligned with the Fascists.
On June 21, 1941, Croatian Fascists took
seven monks out of the Orthodox Monastery at
Zitomislic along with over seven hundred
Orthodox women and children whose menfolk
had left to join the Serbian army. Forced into a
large pit at the nearby town of Surmanci, they
were all buried alive. Forty years after this
atrocity, on June 21, 1981, a plague was
erected at the Monastery in commemoration of
that day. Just three days later, on June 24,
1981, the first apparition of the Virgin Mary
occurred at Medjugorije.

In 1992, eleven years after the original
apparition of the weeping Virgin at Medjugorje,
in a nightmare reversal it was the Serbs who
turned Fascist, while the Croats remained
Fascist, both sides perpetrating the most
ahominable atrocities on each other and on their
Moslem neighbors. The sacrificial victims
numbered in the hundreds of thousands and
perhaps millions, with no end to the killing in
sight. In the midst of this religious holocaust,
the apparitions of the Virgin continue to occur.

Not surprisingly, the Madonna’s
roadshows can be easily mapped by
instances of human mayhem, and are
associated more with suffering and
mass death than with universal
blessings. Apparently, the Blessed
Mother’s tears of sorrow for human-
kind, shed alongside her threats of war
and natural calamity, are nothing but
“crocodile tears.”

Religious Mayhem

As demonstrated by George
Andrews in Extra-terrestrial Friends
and Foes, apparitions of the Blessed
Virgin are closely linked to UFO
phenomena as well as to religious
mayhem. I asked George for his take
on all this, and in a recent letter to
Paranoia he responded:

...Although genuine miracles of healing have
also occurred at some of these sites, there is
an obvious correlation between these
apparitions and large-scale human death. The
first of the apparitions was at Guadalupe,
Mexico, in 1531, at a time when about three
quarters of the indigenous population had just
been slaughtered. The apparition at Fatima in
1917 was near the climax of World War I. The
apparition in Cameroon was only a few months
before the mass deaths near Lake Nios. And
look at what has been going on around
Medjugorje, what a horrifying blood-bath that
whole region has been drenched in, as well as
the curious relationship between the beginning
of the apparitions at Medjugorje and the
massacre of 700 Serb women and children
forty years before.

George feels that
there are abundant indi-
cations that alien tech-
nology is involved in
the Virgin Mary appar-
itions. In a discussion
of the book The Keys of
the Blood, George
writes that author
Malachi Martin, a
Vatican insider, devotes
considerable space to
the manifestation at
Fatima. He notes that

Martin never once uses
the term ‘UFQ,” but the way
he describes the ‘miracle’ on
the final day could easily be
interpreted in terms of UFO
phenomena, so easily that
Martin must have been aware
of this. While deliberately
refraining from being too
specific, he describes a
spaceship without calling it a
spaceship, however, he does
call it a disc! He also points
out the extreme importance
attributed by the Pope to the
apparition at Fatima. Martin
says the present Pope is not

concerned about the fact that

his positions on a number of key issues are
unpopular, further weakening the Church at a
time when its membership is already shrinking,
because he expects an event of a miraculous
nature to occur in the near future that will
cause the entire world to convert to
Catholicism...

Could such a ‘miraculous’ event be
merely a convenient method for the
Grays [i.e. extra-terrestrials] to take
complete despotic control of the planet
by giving absolute power to a single
human being: the Pope?

Catholic Battle Standard

Guadalupe, Mexico in 1531 was not
the first theatre of war over which the
Virgin presided. Going back to the
ninth century, according to Marina
Warner in Alone Of All Her Sex, the
defenders of Chartres against the
Norsemen flew “the Virgin’s tunic”
from the staff which, legend has it, was
the trick that defeated the invaders. In
Byzantium, at the turn of the seventh
century, the “awe inspiring image of
the pure Virgin” flew from the ships of
the Emperor Heraclius as he sailed into
battle. During the siege of Constan-

- B

tinople by the Avars in 626, the patriarch
had the Virgin and child painted on the
west gates in order to “commend the city
into her hands.” In 717, during the Arab
attack on Constantinople, a relic of the
Virgin and child with Cross was carried
around the city walls as a “charm against
the besiegers.”

In Byzantium, during the crusades,
Christians were generally fighting
heathens, and in medieval Europe, the
armies who invoked the Virgin’s favors
were fighting fellow Catholics. In the
Counter-Reformation’s holy wars,
horrors were perpetrated by Christian
upon Christian in the name of the same
God. At the battle of White Mountain
near Prague on November 8, 1620, the
Catholic army of the Holy Roman
Emperor Ferdinand of Austria advanced
crying “St. Mary!” and defeated the
Calvinists, turning the tide of the
Protestant Reformation in Europe and
recovering Bohemia (now Czecho-
slovakia) for Rome. In the years
following that victory, Ms. Warner
writes, “Austrian armies established
Catholic authority over the country,
Jesuits assumed control of the

continued page 19
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all the while pretending to be his guru-
buddie? Leary’s legal battles began in
the late sixties when G. Gordon Liddy
raided Leary’s Millbrook Drug Man-
sion (donated to him by someone with
CIA connections.) It was there under
strange circumstances that Liddy and
Leary first met, and have ever since
over the years continued their strange
alliance, in recent times lecturing the
country in a staged “debate.” Is there
more to this relationship than meets the
eye? Liddy the cold-blooded killer, and
Leary, the enlightened high priest
performing together as a team. Strange
bedfellows, indeed!

Could it have been that Leary was
on a covert intelligence mission during
his outlaw years? Becoming a convict-
ed felon provided him access to such
subterranean outlaws as the Weather
Underground, who assisted him in
escaping from San Quentin, plus the
nefarious drug dealers who harbored
him when he was a fugitive on the run.
Most of the drug dealers and subver-
sive radicals eventually were tracked
down, or died mysterious deaths. This
is just speculation, but could Leary
have in fact ratted on his supposed
brothers in the revolution, setting them
up for arrest? Furthermore, while in
prison, Leary met up with Charlie
Manson, which seems like an odd
coincidence to me, when you consider
the Manson case and its relation to the
use of mind control, sexual domination
and mind altering drugs to make sus-
ceptible teenage babes commit acts of
wanton violence. (By the way, what-
ever became of The Manson children?
Much like the Hitler youth, they re-
mained among us after the downfall of
their leader. [Editor’s note: The
Manson women were the subject of a
recent television special hosted by
Diane Sawyer.])

At one point when Leary was on the
lam, he left the states and journeyed to
communist Algeria, hooking up there
with Eldridge Cleaver (no relation to
the Beave,) the Black Panther author of
the brilliant Soul on Ice, one of the best
and most insightful books written on
the black experience and prison life.
Apparently Cleaver and Leary didn’t
hit it off too well, although initially it

was hyped as the great meeting of
turned-on minds. Did Cleaver figure
out that Leary was there as a spy, try-
ing to turn his brain into instant jello?
Anyway, it might’ve worked. A decade
later, Cleaver—one of the great minds
and courageous souls of his generation
—had been converted to Christianity
and had become an avid Reagan
supporter. If this doesn’t sound like
brainwashing, I don’t know what does.
I mean, who better to achieve this end
than our friend Dr. Leary?

Leary once suggested that a
Christian cabal had done this very
thing to the mind of Bob Dylan during

While in prison,
[Timothy] Leary met
up with Charlie
Manson, which seems
like an odd
coincidence

his religious conversion in the late
70’s. Well, Leary should know. Any-
way, Dylan is definitely a shadow of
his former self. His eyes unfocused; his
singing voice irritating and shrill; his
songs lacking the political punch of his
inspired anthems from the sixties.
Well, who knows...

I’ve attended a couple of Leary
lectures, and he never fails to inspire. I
guess when you’re a controversial
figure, you inevitably open yourself up
to deeper scrutiny, not to mention nut
cases like myself making wild, conspir-
atorial claims. Nowadays, his passion
is the interactive psychedelic software
he produces, as well as espousing the
beneficial aspects of the burgeoning
technology of Virtual Reality, which
once again like LSD has the potential
of expanding minds or conversely
being used as a weapon to manipulate
them. The last time I saw Leary—at a
club in San Fran—a stringy haired
barefoot minstrel playing a Chapman
Stick opened for the good doctor. One
of the songs this long hair barefoot
minstrel performed was his version of
a tune from an old Star Trek episode

called “The Way To Eden,” where this
alien hippie dude jammed with Spock
on Vulcan guitars, crooning a groovy
tune about going to Eden, a cool
though corny song I always dug: Yeah,
brother, goin’ back to Eden! Anyway,
the episode was an allegory of the lives
of the sixties drugged-out generation,
wherein the leader of this group of
'young alien and human hippies, Dr.
Sevrin—whose ulterior motives and
motivations (like Dr. Leary?) were
self-serving and devious in nature—
takes his turned-on children In Search
of (with Leonard Nimoy) Eden and
eventually find what they believe to be
their much sought after paradise.
Unfortunately, when they step from the
shuttle (violating, I might add, Feder-
ation Law!) onto the lush green grass
of Planet Eden, their bare feet became
instantly blackened and blistered; the
fiery grasses burning their feet like
molten magma. To add insult to injury,
the seemingly delicious fruit hanging
freely from a nearby tree of knowledge
turns out to be oozing with juicy snake
venom, killing the cool alien crooner
(his name appropriately enough Adam)
when he bites into an apple filled with
serpent spit, and croaks; an obvious
reference to how the writer of this
script, Arthur Heineman, viewed the
drug-using youth culture of that period.
Upon occasion, the drug-users did,
in fact, do dumb things like staring into
the sun and blinding their eyes. Or,
like Art Linkletter’s daughter, thinking
they could fly out tenth story windows,
thereby splattering their hopped-up
heads on the cold concrete of hard
reality like so many misguided melons,
plummeting to a
pulpy death.®
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Blacks used for organs?

® When rich whites need a heart or kidney transplant,
they say, “Get us a nigger,” according to Nation of Islam
leader Minister Louis Farrakhan. Speaking to a mostly black
audience at a stop-the-violence rally at the University of
Toledo in late April, Farrakhan warned that whites do not
want to stop black-on-black violence because, “You've be-
come good for parts.” (AP)

The death of Brian

® Two new hooks claim Rolling Stones co-founder Brian
Jones was murdered in his swimming pool in 1969. At the
time, the cause of death was ruled a drowning “while under
the influence of alcohol and drugs.” Both
books—Paint it Black: The Murder of
Brian Jones by Geoffrey Giuliano and Who
Killed Christopher Robin? by Terry
Rawlings—claim the 27-year old guitarist
was purposely drowned by London builder
Frank Thorogood, who had been hired to
renovate Jones’ Sussex estate. Rawlings
cites a deathbed confession by Thorogood,
while Giuliano cites a tape recording of an
unidentified witness. Thorogood's daughter
maintains that her father was innocent.
(Wire reports)

ChemWar in SanFran?

® |n late February, San Francisco’s
Mission District experienced a mysterious
“Green Rain.” Those with a knowledge of
chemical warfare stayed inside, while
others reportedly ran around tasting it and
smearing themselves with it. No explan-
ation of the “Green Rain” has emerged.
(San Francisco Examiner)

Swastika in video game

® Radio Shack/Tandy apologized earlier
this year for selling a video game that
repeatedly displays the image of a swastika
on the screen. The company canceled future
orders of the “Pinball Master” game, and
offered to reimburse offended customers. A Tandy
spokesperson claimed that the symbol, used by the German
Nazi Party during Hitler's reign, is a “good luck sign” in the
Buddhist religion. Thus, the Asian supplier did not realize the
graphic might offend. (Turning the Tide: Newsletter of
People Against Racist Terror, PO Box 1990, Burbank, CA
91507. $10jyr)

Deaths puzzle researchers

® Federal scientists researching a cure for hepatitis B
remain puzzled by the 1993 deaths of five patients given an
experimental drug. There was no indication of why a deadly
poison had built up in the patients’ bodies, according to a
National Institute of Health researcher. The five patients who
died were participating in a trial of an antiviral drug called
FIAU. (AP)

b

Brian Jones

Breast cancer cover-up

® A big PR campaign run during National Breast Cancer
Awareness Month warns women that the cancer is caused
by poor diets, heredity, and hormones. The campaign avoids
any mention of the possible role of toxic chemical pollutants,
particularly a group called organochlorines. The level of one
of these synthetic chemicals—DDE, a metabolized product of
the pesticide DDT—has been found to be higher in women
with breast cancer than women without breast cancer. So,
why the selective warning? Well, the sole financial backer of
“Breast Cancer Awareness Month” is Imperial Chemical
Industries, which happens to be one of the world’s largest
manufacturers of products containing
organochlorines. (The Providence Phoenix)

Man implicated in MLK
assassination

® A man other than James Earl Ray has
been implicated in the 1968 assassination of
Martin Luther King, Jr. An affidavit by Betty
Spates, who once worked at Jim’s Grill in
Nashville, implicates the owner, Loyd
Jowers. In a March affidavit, she was
quoted as saying that Jowers “came running
through the back door” of the restaurant
carrying a rifle moments after King's
shooting. (AP)

It's a dang conspiracy!

® Country music star Dolly Parton apolo-
gized recently after voicing complaints about
what she considers to be Hollywood's anti-
Christian bias. After several producers turned
down her idea for a show in which a country
singer turns to Gospel music and Christian
values, Parton reportedly complained about
the power of Jews, and lack of powerful
Christians, within the Hollywood power
structure. (The Spotlight)

Big Brother computer network

® FINCEN—the Financial Crimes Enforcement
Network—is an interactive network of 92
computer databases, connected through a national computer
system. It can be accessed by any government agency, either
federal or state. Posing as a government official, lawyer
Linda Thompson learned of its unprecedented capabilities.
With it, someone can find out your PIN (personal
identification number), nearest neighbors’ names, your
spouse’s social security number, your VIN (vehicle
identification number), your credit history, your travel history,
your tax records, and more. In effect, it provides one-stop
shopping for government snoops. (Speech by Linda Thompson
in October, 1933, reported in Nexus magazine)®
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chic
‘warfare

and nonlethal
weapons

by Armen Victorian

n April 22, 1993, both BBCI and BBC2

showed on their evening news a rather

lengthy piece concerning America’s latest

development in weaponry—the nonlethal

weapons concept. David Shukman, BBC Defense

Correspondent, interviewed (Retired) US Army Colonel
John B. Alexander and Janet Morris, two of the main
proponents of the concept.1 The concept of nonlethal
weapons is not new. Nonlethal weapons have been used by
the intelligence, police and defense establishments in the
past.2 Several western governments have used a variety of
nonlethal weapons in a more discreet and covert manner. It
seems that the US government is about to take the first step
towards their open use.

The current interest in the concept of nonlethal weapons
began about a decade ago with John Alexander. In
December 1980 he published an article in the US Army’s
journal, Military Review, “The New Mental Battlefield,”
referring to claims that telepathy could be used to interfere
with the brain’s electrical activity. This
caught the attention of senior Army

capability. In 1991 Janet Morris issued a number of papers
giving more detailed information about USGSC’s concept of
nonlethal weapons.s Shortly after, the US Army Training
and Doctrine Command at Fort Monroe, VA, published a
detailed draft report on the subject, titled “Operations
Concept for Disabling Measures.” The report included over
twenty projects in which John Alexander is currently
involved at the Los Alamos National Laboratories. In a
memorandum dated April 10, 1991, titled “Do we need a
Nonlethal Defense Initiative?,” Paul Wolfwitz, Under
Secretary of Defense for Policy, wrote to Defense Secretary
Dick Cheney, “A US lead in nonlethal technologies will
increase our options and reinforce our position in the
post-Cold War world. Our Research and Development
efforts must be increased.”

How lethal is nonlethal?

To support their nonlethal weapons concept, Janet Morris
argues that while “war will always be terrible..., a world
power deserving its reputation for humane action should
pioneer the principles of nonlethal defense.”s In defining a
nonlethal strategy, she seeks to establish

generals who encouraged him to pursue
what they termed “soft option kill”
technologies. After retiring from the
Army in 1988, Alexander joined the Los

This article originally appeared in Nexus
Magazine, October/November 1993. US$25
for one year (6 issues), PO Box 74,
Kempton, IL 60946-0074

a doctrine for the use of nonlethal
weapons by the US in crisis “at home
or abroad in a life serving fashion.” She
totally disregards the offensive, lethal

Alamos National Laboratories and began
working with Janet Morris, the Research Director of the US
Global Strategy Council (USGSC), chaired by Dr. Ray
Cline, former Deputy Director of the CIA.3 I examine the
background of Janet Morris and John Alexander in more
detail below.

Throughout 1990 the USGSC lobbied the main national
laboratories, major defense contractors and industries,
retired senior military and intelligence officers. The result
was the creation of a Nonlethality Policy Review Group, led
by Major General Chris S. Adams, USAF (retired), former
Chief of Staff, Strategic Air Command.4 They already have
the support of Senator Sam Nunn, chair of the Senate Armed
Services Committee. According to Janet Morris, the military
attaché at the Russian Embassy has contacted USGSC about
the possibility of converting military hardware to a nonlethal

aspects inherent in some of the weapons
in question, or their misuse, should they become available to
‘rogue’ nations. Despite her arguments that nonlethal
weapons should serve US interests “at home and abroad by
projecting power without indiscriminately taking lives or
destroying property,”7 she admits that “casualties cannot be
avoided.”8 Closer examination of the types of weapons to be
used as nonlethal invalidates her assertions about their
nonlethality. According to her White Paper, the areas where
nonlethal weapons could be useful are “regional and low
intensity conflict (adventurism, insurgency, ethnic violence,
terrorism, narco-trafficking, domestic crime).”9 She believes
that “by identifying and requiring a new category of
nonlethal weapons, tactics and strategic planning” the US
can reshape its military capability “to meet the already
identifiable threats” that they might face in a multipolar

K>
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world “where American interests are globalized and
American presence widespread.”10

The potential inventory

Janet Morris’ White Paper recommends two types of
“life-conserving technologies”: Anti-materiel nonlethal
technologies—to destroy or impair electronics, or in other
ways stop mechanical systems from functioning, and
anti-personnel nonlethal technologies. Amongst current
technologies from which the first category of nonlethal
weapons would or could be chosen are:

®Chemical and biological weapons, for their anti-materiel
agents “which do not significantly endanger life or the
environment, or anti-personnel agents which have no
permanent effects.”11

®Laser blinding systems to incapacitate the electronic
SEensors, or optics, i.e., light detection and ranging. Already
the Army Infantry School is
developing a one-man
portable and operated laser
weapons system known as the
Infantry Self-Defense System.
The US Army’s Armament
Research, Development and
Engineering Center (ARDEC)
is also engaged in the
development of nonlethal
weapons under their program
called “Low Collateral
Damage Munitions”
(LCDM). The LCDM is
trying to develop technologies
leading to weapons capable of
dazzling and incapacitating
missiles, armored vehicles and personnel.

®Nonlethal electromagnetic technologies.

®Non-nuclear electromagnetic pulse weapons.12 As
General Norman Schwarzkopf has told the US Joint Chiefs of
Staff, one such weapon stationed in space with a wide-area-
pulse capacity has the ability to fry enemy electronics. But
what would be the fate of enemy personnel in such a
scenario? In a joint project with the Los Alamos National
Laboratories and with technical support from the Army’s
Harry Diamond Laboratories, ARDEC are developing High
Power Microwave (HPM) Projectiles. According to ARDEC,
the Diamond lab has already “completed a radio frequency
effects analysis on a representative target set” for HPM.

® Among the chemical agents, so-called supercaustics—
“millions of times more caustic than hydrofluoric
acid”13—are prime candidates. An artillery round could
deliver jellied super-acids which could destroy the optics of
heavily armored vehicles or tanks, vision blocks or glass, and
could be used to silently destroy key weapons systems.14 On
less lethal aspects, the use of net-like entanglements for
SEAL teams, or ‘stealthy’ metal boats with low or no radar
signature, “for night actions, or any seaborne or come-ashore
stealthy scenario,” are under consideration.15 More colorful
concepts are the use of chemical metal embrittlement, often
called liquid metal embrittlement, and anti-materiel polymers
which would be used in aerosol dispersal systems, spreading

The CIA had a...program in 1978
called Operation Pique, which
included bouncing radio or
microwave signals off the
ionosphere to affect mental
functions of people in selected
areas, including Eastern
European nuclear installations

chemical adhesives or lubricants (i.e., Teflon-based lubri-
cants) on enemy equipment from a distance.

Anti-personnel nonlethal technologies include:

®Hand-held lasers which are meant “to dazzle,” could
also cause the eyeball to explode and to blind the target.

®]sotropic radiators—explosively driven munitions,
capable of generating very bright omnidirectional light, with
similar effects to laser guns.

®High-power microwaves (HPM). US Special Operations
Command already has that capability within their grasp as a
portable microwave weapon.16 As Myron L. Wolbarsht, a
Duke University opthalamist and expert in laser weapons,
stated: “US Special Forces can quietly cut enemy communi-
cations but also can cook internal organs.”17

® Another candidate is infrasound-acoustic beams. In
conjunction with the Scientific Applications and Research
Associates (SARA) of Huntingdon, California, ARDEC and
Los Alamos laboratories
are busy “developing high
power, very low frequency
acoustic beam weapons.”
They are also looking into
methods of projecting
non-diffracting (i.e.
non-penetrating) high
frequency acoustic bullets.
ARDEC scientists are also
looking into methods of
using pulsed chemical
lasers. This class of lasers
could project “a hot, high
pressure plasma in the air
in front of a target surface,
creating a blast wave that will result in variable but controlled
effects on materiel and personnel.”

®Infrasound. Already some governments have used it as a
means of crowd control, e.g. France.

®Very low frequency (VLF) sound (20-35 kHz), or
low-frequency RF modulations can cause nausea, vomiting
and abdominal pains. “Some very low frequency sound
generators, in certain frequency ranges, can cause the
disruption of human organs and, at high power levels, can
crumble masonry.18 The CIA had a similar program in 1978
called Operation Pique, which included bouncing radio or
microwave signals off the ionosphere to affect mental
functions of people in selected areas, including Eastern
European nuclear installations.19

John Alexander

The entire nonlethal weapons concept opens up a new
Pandora’s Box of unknown consequences. The main
personality behind it is retired Colonel John B. Alexander.
Born in New York in 1937, he spent part of his career as a
Commander of Green Berets Special Forces in Vietnam, led
Cambodian mercenaries behind enemy lines, and took part in
a number of clandestine programs, including Phoenix. He
currently holds the post of Director of Nonlethal Programs in
the Los Alamos National Laboratories. Alexander obtained a
BSc. from the University of Nebraska and an M.A. from
Pepperdine University. In 1980 he was awarded a Ph.D.

<>
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from Walden University20 for his thesis “To determine
whether or not significant changes in spirituality occur in
persons who attended a Kubler-Ross life/death transition
workshop during the period June through February 1979.”
His dissertation committee was chaired by Elizabeth
Kubler-Ross.

He has long been interested in what used to be regarded
as ‘fringe’ areas. In 1971, while a Captain in the infantry at
Schofield Barracks, Honolulu, he was diving in the Bimini
Islands looking for the lost continent of Atlantis. He was an
official representative for the Silva mind control organiza-
tion and a lecturer on Precataclysmic Civilizations.21
Alexander is also a past President and a board member of
the International Association for Near Death Studies; and,
with his former wife, Jan Northup, he helped Dr. C. B.
Scott Jones perform ESP experiments with dolphins.22

PSI-TECH
Retired Major General Albert N. Stubblebine (former
Director of US Army Intelligence and Security Command)
and Alexander are on the board of a ‘remote viewing’
company called PSI-TECH. The company also employs
Major Edward Dames (ex Defense Intelligetice.Agen
Major David Morehouse (ex 82nd Alrbom:‘ Dy

viewing to locate Saddam’s Scud missiles s
(1992) the FBI sought PSI-TECH’s assistan
kidnapped Exxon executive.23

With Ma_]or Richard Groller and J anet

inherent in each of us. To do this, we, like
around the world, must take a fresh look at
methods of affecting reality. We must raise hun
sciousness of the potential power of the individua \7
mind system—the power to manipulate reality. We must be
willing to retake control of our past, present, and ultimately,
our future.”26

Alexander is a friend of Vice President Al Gore Jr., their
relationship dating back to 1983 when Gore was in
Alexander’s Neuro-Linguistic Programming (NLP) course.
NLP “presented to selected general officers and senior
executive service members”27 a set of techniques to modify
behavior patterns.28 Among the first generals to take the
course was the then Lieutenant General Maxwell Thurman,
who later went on to receive his fourth star and become
Vice-Chief of Staff of the Army and Commander Southern
Command.29 Among other senior participants were Tom
Downey and Major General Stubblebine, former Director of
the Army Intelligence Security Command.

“In 1983, the Jedi master [from the Star Wars movie
—author] provided an image and a name for the Jedi
Project.”30 Jedi Project’s aim was to seek and “construct

teachable models of behavioral/physical excellence using
unconventional means.”31 According to Alexander, the Jedi
Project was to be a follow-up to Neuro-Linguistic Program-
ming skills. By using the influence of friends such as Major
General Stubblebine, who was then head of the US Army
Intelligence and Security Command, he managed to fund
Jedi. In reality the concept was old hat, re-christened by
Alexander. The original idea, which was to show how
“human willpower and human concentration affect perform-
ance more than any other single factor”32 using NLP skills,
was the brainchild of three independent people; Fritz
Erikson, a Gestalt therapist, Virginia Satir, a family
therapist, and Erick Erickson, a hypnotist.

anet Morris, co-author of The Warrior’s
Edge, is best known as a science fiction
writer but has been a member of the New
York Academy of Sciences since 1980 and

is a member of the Association for Elec-
She is also the Research Dlrector of the US

has been conducting remote-
years. She worked on a

tion with the author,34
xander’s involvement in

after Janet Morris’ visit to Russia in 1991.
own the technique which was pioneered by
rtment of PsychoCorrection at Moscow

y
it. They input subliminal command messages, using key
words transmitted in ‘white noise’ or music.35 Using an
infrasound very low frequency-type transmission, the
acoustic psycho-correction message is transmitted via bone
conduction—ear plugs would not restrict the message. To do
that would require an entire body protection system.
According to the Russians, the subliminal messages bypass
the conscious level and are effective almost immediately.

C. B. Scott Jones

Jones is the former assistant to Senator Claiborne Pell
(Democrat, Rhode Island). Scott Jones was a member of US
Naval Intelligence for 15 years, as well as the Assistant
Naval President’s Scientific Advisory Committee, and has
testified before House and Senate Committees on intelli-
gence matters. After the Navy he “worked in the private
sector research and development community involved in the
US government-sponsored projects for the Defense Nuclear
Agency (DNA), Defense Intelligence Agency (DIA) and US

«br
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Army Intelligence and Security Command.” He has been
head of the Rockefeller Foundation for some time and chairs
the American Society for Psychical Research.36

Birds of a feather

Alexander and C. B. Jones are members of the AVIARY,
a group of intelligence and Department of Defense officers
and scientists with a brief to discredit any serious research in
the UFO field. Each member of the Aviary bears a bird’s
name. Jones is FALCON; John Alexander is PENGUIN.
One of their agents, a UFO researcher known as William
Moore, who was introduced to John Alexander at a party in
1987 by Scott Jones, confessed in front of an audience at a
conference held by the Mutual UFO Network (MUFON) on
July 1, 1989 in Las Vegas, how he was promised inside
information by the senior members of the AVIARY in
return for his obedience and service to them. He participated
in the propagation and dissemination of disinformation fed
to him by various members of the AVIARY. He also
confessed how he was instructed to target one particular
individual, an electronics expert, Dr. Paul Bennewitz, who
had accumulated some UFO film footage and electronic
signals which were taking place in 1980 over the Menzano
Weapons Storage areas at Kirkland Air Force Base, New
Mexico. As a result of Moore’s involvement, coupled with
some surreptitious entries and psychological techniques,
Bennewitz ended up in a psychiatric hospital. Just before the
publication of my first paper unmasking two members of the
AVIARY37, I was visited by two of their members
(MORNING DOVE and HAWK) who had traveled to the
UK with a message from the senior ranks advising me not to
go ahead with my expose. I rejected the proposal.

Immediately after the publication of that paper, and with
the full knowledge that myself and a handful of colleagues
knew the true identities of their members, John B.
Alexander confessed that he was indeed a member of the
AVIARY, nicknamed PENGUIN. The accuracy of our
information was further confirmed to me by yet another
member of the AVIARY—Ron Pandolphi, PELICAN.
Pandolphi is a Ph.D. in physics and works at the Rocket and
Missile section of the Office of the Deputy Director of
Science and Technology, CIA. In his book, Out There38, the
New York Times journalist Howard Blum refers to “a UFO
Working Group” within the Defense Intelligence Agency.
Despite DIA’s repeated denials,39 the existence of this
working group has been confirmed to me by more than one
member of the group itself, including an independent source
in the Office of Naval Intelligence. The majority of the
group’s members are senior members of the AVIARY: Dr.
Christopher Green (BLUEJAY) from the CIA40, Harold
Puthoff (OWL), ex-NSA; Dr. Jack Verona (RAVEN),
Department of Defense, one of the initiators of the DIA’s
Sleeping Beauty project which aimed to achieve battlefield
superiority using mind-altering electromagnetic weaponry;
John Alexander (PENGUIN); and Ron Pandolphi
(PELICAN). The mysterious “Col. Harold E. Phillips” who
appears in Blum’s Out There, is none other than John
Alexander.

John Alexander’s position as the Program Manager for
Contingency Missions of Conventional Defense Technology,

«l»

Los Alamos National Laboratories, enabled him to exploit
the Department of Defense’s Project Reliance “which
encourages a search for all possible sources of existing and
incipient technologies before developing new technology
in-house”41 to tap into a wide range of exotic topics,

‘sometimes using defense contractofs, e.g., McDonnell”

Douglas Aerospace. I have several reports, some of which
were compiled before his departure to the Los Alamos
National Laboratories when he was with Army Intelligence,
which show Alexander’s keen interest in any and every
exotic subject—UFOs, ESP, psychotronics, antigravity
devices, near-death experiments, psychology warfare and
nonlethal weaponry. John Alexander utilizes the bank of
information he has accumulated to try to develop
psychotronic, psychological and mind weaponry. He began
thinking about nonlethal weapons a decade ago in his paper,
“The New Mental Battlefield.” He seems to want to become
a ‘Master.’ If they ever succeed in this ambition, the rest of
us ordinary mortals had better watch out.®

Notes:

1. Letter dated 2 April, 1993, to author from Mrs. Victoria
Alexander.

2. The US Army Chemical and Military Police used “Novel
Effect Weapons” against the women protesters at the Greenham
Common base.

3. The United States Global Strategy Council is an independent
think-tank, incorporated in 1981. It focuses on long-range strategic
issues. The founding members were Clare Booth Luce, General
Maxwell Taylor, General Albert Wedemeyer, Dr. Ray Cline
(Co-chair), Jeane Kirkpatrick (Co-chair), Morris Leibman, Henry
Luce III, J. William Middendorf II, Admiral Thomas H. Moorer
USN (retired), General Richard Stillwell (retired), Dr. Michael A.
Daniles (President), Dr. Dalton A. West (Executive Vice
President). Its Research Directors were Dr. Yona Alexander, Dr.
Roger Fontaine, Robert L. Katula and Janet Morris.

4. Nonlethality: Development of a National Policy and
Employing Nonlethal Means in a New Strategic Era, a Project of
the US Global Strategy Council, 1991, page 4. Other staff
members of the USGSC are Steve Trevino, Dr. John B. Alexander
and Chris Morris.

5. The USGSC has issued a wide variety of papers on the
Nonlethal Weapons Concept. For example, In Search of Nonlethal
Strategy (Janet Morris); Nonlethality: A Global Strategy— White
Paper; Nonlethality Briefing Supplement No. I, and Nonlethality in
the Operational Continuum.

6. In Search of a Nonlethal Strategy, Janet Morris, page 1.

7. Nonlethality: A Global Strategy—White Paper, page 3.

8. In Search of..., page 3.

9. In the recent cult siege in Waco, Texas, a ‘nonlethal’
technique, projecting subliminal messages, was used to influence
David Koresh—without success.

10. Nonlethality: A Global Strategy—White Paper, page 2.

11. The computer database compiled during the CIA/Army’s
Project OFTEN examining several thousand chemical compounds,
during 1976-1973, is a most likely candidate for any chemical
agents for nonlethal weapons.

12. The British MoD is already developing a ‘microwave
bomb.” Work on the weapon is going on at the Defense Research
Agency at Farnborough Hampshire. See Sunday Telegraph 27
September 1992, partly reproduced in Lobster 24, page 14. The
Royal Navy is already in possession of laser weapons which dazzle
aircraft pilots. The Red Cross has called for them to be banned
under the Geneva Convention because they could permanently
blind.

continued page 23
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Moon Hoax

After 20 years of research on the Apollo
hoax, | have chosen just two items as proof
they never landed [on the moon]: 1. The astro-
nauts do not want to discuss it...Neil Arm-
strong in particular. My question is, Why Not?
2. There is no mention of stars, although
astronomers tell me that the sight of trillions
of stars and galaxies would have evoked a
tremendous response from the astronauts.
Also, no photos.

There is a Greco-Roman principle...false in
part, false in the whole, and that is why |
believe | only need a couple of good argu-
ments. Your help in publicizing this for the
25th anniversary of the alleged landings will
be appreciated. | will send a book as soon as
the reprints are out. JOY ACTION.

Bill K, Soquel CA

More on KAL
There is another view of KAL 007
[Paranoia Issue 4] that might interest your
readers. It can be found in Fletcher Prouty’s
1992 hook, JFK: The CIA, Vietnam and the
Plot to Assassinate John F. Kennedy.
Prouty maintains that the story of KAL 007
landing safely at Sakhalin island was planted
by the CIA to get the Japanese to recall their
Air-Sea Rescue fleet. “With that essential
diversion safely accomplished, the government
could announce any scenario it wanted,” he
says. He does not offer a real reason for the
shootdown, but others have suggested that
the plane was deliberately flown into Soviet
airspace so that the space shuttle Challenger,
in orbit above the precise location, could
monitor Soviet defenses. If the plane did land
safely and Larry McDonald lives, the Russians
are welcome to keep him in my book. But if
KAL 007 sacrificed 269 lives for the sake of
collecting some defense data, then we all
have cause to be paranoid.
Kenn Thomas, Editor/Publisher
Steamshovel Press, St Louis MO

Fanatic admirer

| received [Paranoia Issue 4] at 1400
hours 04 March 1994. Publication achieved
immediate maximum impact ratios of 9.9 on
the Richter scale for each of the following
variable parameters:

® Surprise/Shock Value

@ Visual/Graphic Appeal

@ Pavlovian doggy-slobber/whimper
response to headlinesfindex

® Hyperventilation/Woof rate per story.
Points were lost in the substance category for

one major error in Len Bracken’s book review
of Secret and Suppressed. The statement
that the book contains a “long, riveting inter-
view with Nazi International chief, Otto
Skorzeny” is false, and indicates that Mr.
Bracken did not read the interview, which
clearly states that the man interviewed is an
“operative” of the Skorzeny network, not
Skorzeny himself. Otherwise, you have pro-
duced a truly outstanding issue.

Mark S, Fanatic Admirer

Acid rain alert

Over the last 50 years, rainwater has
become considerably more acidic. Due to this
change, toxic heavy metals, which occur in
trace amounts in ALL soils, are more easily
turned from insoluble forms to soluble, and
thus, are entering the food chain. It is also
KNOWN that a constant toxic load will reduce
immune response...Aluminum, known for years
by farmers to be toxic to plants, is toxic to
humans. It normally isn't in a form the body
can absorb. But acid rain changes all that.
Cadmium, lead, mercury...Did you know that
50% of all deaths of the elderly listed as
“kidney failure” are in fact cadmium poison-
ing?...10-15 years ago, a cigar-shaped object
was reported to have discharged a spider-
web-type substance above SE Asia and South
America. | have isolated DNA from Phage
viruses grown on E-Coli [bacteria] and it
comes out as a fine, spiderweb-like thread.
What were those craft spreading—viral DNA?
It sure wasn’t air freshener.

A LERMA, from America Online

Music for mind control

This information is related to the issue of
using music for mind control or as a “trigger
mechanism” [see Paranoia Issue 3, “Is the
Catcher in the Rye a Mechanism for Con-
trol?”] It's not the Beatles, but Simon and
Garfunkel. Take the lyrics from Scarborough
Fair:

Between the salt water | And stands and
polishes a gun | Then she'll be a true love of
mine (John Hinkley?) lwho allegedly shot
Ronald Reagan to win the love of actress
Jodie Foster—Ed.] Tell her to reap it in a
side | Blazing in scarlet battalion | ... | Pointed
and soldiers to kill /| And valor is won | And to
fight for a cause / They’ve long ago forgotten
(Programming our boys for Vietnam?)

Lamech 777

(Also, I've read that the song Bridge
Over Troubled Water is actually written
from the perspective of a heroin dealer

L1 /74

who says he is providing
comfort to his addict
customer.—Ed.)

Devoted reader
What a great paranoiac read!
Keep doing it! | particularly liked
the articles about Jonestown by
John Judge, and those on Waco
[and Leonard Peltier.] I'm re-
searching an article concerning
the Warren Commission cover-up,
the bombing of LaGuardia Airport
December 29, 1975 (85th
anniversary of Wounded Knee
and 13th anniversary of JFK's
speech to the anti-Castro Cubans
at the Orange Bowl in Miami,
among other things,) a
fundamentalist religious cult here
in Florida called End Times
Ministries, and an Air Force
helicopter crash which occurred
east of Cape Kennedy in the
Atlantic on April 7, 1984. What?
No one's ever heard about this crash? |
wouldn't be surprised. In the struggle,
Bob D, Melbourne FL

&

Rush on Mars?

The “Mars Face” [Paranoia Issue 3] is
easily dismissed. My associates and | con-
structed a facsimile of the “human face on
the surface of the planet Mars,” mostly out
of chewing gum, and when lighting it from
97.2 degrees SE of the ambient lighting in the
so-called “NASA Viking photo,” we found that
it closely resembled popular TV and radio
personality Rush Limbaugh. So much for the
Mars Face!

Greg H, Rilton PA

Help fill this section!
Send your comments, rants,
ideas, and requests to:
PARANOIA, PO Box 3570,
Cranston, RI 02910. Or send
E-Mail to: Al Hideli@aol.com.
Letters will be edited for space
and clarity. We assume you are all
prudently paranoid, so full names
will not be used unless requested.
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ersistent reports of
UFO activity eman-
ating from the small
town of Fyffe, Alabama

in 1989 prompted that state’s Wo
senate to declare Fyffe “The

Cattle mutilations

in Alabama’'s
UFO capital

UFO Capital of Alabama.”
The good folks of Fyffe and other
small burgs tucked away in the
northeast corner of this state
accepted their newfound celebrity
with aplomb, considering the whole
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“Men In Black” who
attempt to threaten or
cajole them into silence.
These MIB’s are usually
reported to have a “pasty”
appearance to their faces,
as though they are wearing
heavy stage make-up. If
the humanlike agents in
the helicopters are indeed
more of these MIB’s, then
they seem to be trying to
maintain a lower profile in

affair quite harmless.

The perception of harmlessness
changed quite rapidly with the discovery of the first
mutilated cow in 1992. There have been at least twenty-five
similar incidents since then. These cattle mutilations fit the
same modus operandi as thousands of others that ufologists
and police departments have

this case. For instance,
Jean Cole, the wife of
Albertville’s chief detective, saw a copter in the back yard
one evening. When the four business-suited occupants
realized that they had been spotted, they immediately flew
off. Upon surveying his property the following day,
Detective Cole found the carcass of one of his Black Angus.
It’s sex organs and

investigated since reports began
in 1967. Certain features and
details of the mutilation scene
remain constant. There are
never any signs of struggle or
predatory animals surrounding
the corpus bovine. Internal
organs, patches of skin, even
teeth are taken with surgical
precision.

Typical is the case of
Margret Pope from the nearby
town of Geraldine. Close inspection of her dead calf
revealed that something or someone had sliced off it’s
udder. It also had a four inch circular incision in it’s side
with a matching circular cut on the left jaw. Pope was
quoted as saying, “There was no sign of a struggle. No
blood, nothing. Just laying there, with it’s parts cut out. I
think it’s UFOs, because of lots of lights in the sky, no
disturbance on the ground. And the cuts were too precise.
But you just watch who you say aliens and UFOs to. I don’t
want to be made fun of. We’re not weird. And this isn’t
fun.”

Many claim that the lights that Pope refers to actually
belong to mysterious helicopters, which have been seen
landing out on the pastures at night. This has led some to
speculate that these mutilations are the handiwork of
government agents performing some sort of grisly field
experiments. It should be noted that the appearance of
helicopters in this case does not necessarily preclude the
UFO theory. In fact, many documented UFO sightings have
also involved the enigmatic presence of unmarked
helicopters, often acting as escorts for the flying disks.
Eyewitness accounts often note the presence of well dressed
men aboard these copters. In past UFO encounters, some
witnesses and contactees have reported visitations from

There are never any signs of
struggle or predatory animals
surrounding the corpus bovine.
Internal organs, patches of skin,
even teeth are taken with
surgical precision.

rectum had been quite
neatly removed.
Heading the police
investigation in Fyffe
is officer Ted
Oliphant. According to
him, ninety-five
percent of these cases
include reports of
helicopters. As the
scope of the investi-
gation widens, the mystery deepens. Says Oliphant, “We’ve
got no witnesses. No motive. No suspects. We’ve got more
than one group doing this. We’ve got the unexplained
events, with high technology, cauterization of wounds. And
we’ve got something I can’t release right now.” ®

Source: Cox News Service

MEAT HANDBOOK

FIG. 13.1.

ap:v

BEEF FOREQUARTER—PRIMAL CUTS CHICAGO-STYLE



NEATPAGEINFO:id=96CECC6B-E0C9-4618-9A12-91D28A5B4B3E


Vir GIN continued from page 9

universities, thousands of Protestants
were banished, and those that remained
were deprived of their civil rights.”

The use of religious ritual as a battle
standard was combined in the Church’s
fostering of devotion to the rosary, a
necklace of beads on which the Hail
Mary is recited over and over. The
exact point of entry of the rosary into
western Christendom is not known, but
is generally attributed to the crusaders.
By the end of the twelfth century,
Marina Warner writes, “the Francis-
cans and Dominicans had spread the
use of the rosary among the laity and
encouraged its use among the illiterate
to obtain the Virgin’s mercy and
protection.” By the fifteenth century
the practice had spread zealously
throughout Europe.

The notorious witch-hunter Jacob
Sprenger, formed the first lay con-
fraternity devoted to the rosary in
Germany in 1475. After Pope
Alexander VI, the first pope to
mention the rosary, gave his official
approval in 1495, the practice spread
like wildfire. In 1573, Pope Pius V
instituted a feast of Our Lady of
Victory to commemorate the defeat of
the Turks at the battle of Lepanto, a
victory that “destroyed the power of
the heathen Turks in the Mediter-
ranean.” The pope believed that by the
rosaries offered by the confraternities
of Rome, the Virgin’s intercession had
given the battle to “God’s side.”

This proclamation affirmed the
sacred power of the rosary for all time.
The evidence cited by the pope to
authenticate this was a vision of the
Madonna to Saint Dominic. According
to the story, while conducting the
inquisition against Albigensian heretics
at the beginning of the thirteenth cen-
tury, Dominic had been given the
rosary by the Virgin herself.

Her claim to the divine through the
physical “immaculate conception” of
the Son of God gave the Blessed
Mother powers of intervention, or, the
ability to work both sides. The Son
could not refuse the Mother’s implor-
ing pleas to intervene on behalf of her
favorite children, so long as they
utilized the power of the magic beads.

Thus, the direct intervention of the
Virgin in human affairs gave the
rosary a claim to divine ordinance.
Nineteenth and twentieth century
visions of the Virgin Mary have since
confirmed her special love for the
rosary. At both the visions in Lourdes
and at Fatima, the apparition urged the
recitation of the rosary and pilgrimages
are now committed to the recital of the
Hail Mary.

Communism and the Anti-Christ

The Virgin and the rosary have over
time become associated with the Cath-
olic struggle against its arch-enemies.
In 1717, the feast of the Rosary was
extended to the entire Church after the
defeat of the Turks at Petrovaradin
(now in Yugoslavia). Exactly two
hundred years later, during the visions
at Fatima, Our Lady of the Rosary
spoke of an Anti-Christ. Lucia dos
Santos revealed in 1927 that the Virgin
had warned:

| shall come to ask for the consecration of
Russia to my Immaculate Heart...If my requests
are heard, Russia will be converted and there
will be peace. If not, she will spread her errors
throughout the entire world, provoking wars and
persecution of the Church...But in the end, my
Immaculate Heart will triumph.

In the propaganda that followed the
visions, this Anti-Christ was identified
with Communism and used to spread
fanatical anti-Communist paranoia.
Many Catholics believed that the
Fatima vision prophesied the Second
World War and, further, that it influ-
enced the pope’s attitude toward
Russia. In 1942, Pope Pius XII dedi-
cated the world to the Immaculate
Heart of Mary, and soon afterwards
instituted a new feast of that name,
celebrated on August 22. According to
Marina Warner, the horror with which
the Vatican viewed Russia contributed
to its alignment with Nazi Germany,
Russia’s enemy. As one Catholic
author stated: “Against Satan in his red
threats, we have Mary.”

When Statues Cry

Now we arrive at the ultimate
question: Do the apparitions “cause”
war, as George Andrews and others
have suggested, or does war “cause”
the apparitions? The psychoanalytic
aspect of these phenomena is studied

Wi

by Michael Carroll in The Cult of the
Virgin Mary. He suggests that, when
populations are faced with danger and
destruction, it is understandable that an
attempt to reduce anxiety might occur.
Religion is the oldest remedial standby
for the lack of control people feel at
certain times. For instance, the arrival
of French troops into Italy under
Napolean in 1796 instigated a rash of
“miraculous events,” mostly associated
with the Virgin Mary. Statues and
images of Mary began to do strange
things: she cried, she turned lumines-
cent, her eyes opened and closed, and
fiery sparks flew from her eye sockets.
The Blessed Virgin “coming to life”
would reassure people on the verge of
calamity that “the forces of the
supernatural world are on their side.”

Likewise, an apparition appearing in
the sky to several children in Pont-
main, France on January 17, 1871
occurred in the final stages of the
Franco-Prussian War, after France had
suffered a series of defeats. As
Michael Carroll explains, “Paris had
been under siege since September and
under bombardment since December...
the city’s population was starving and
on the verge of surrender...” In
addition, thirty-five males from the
small town had gone off to fight the
Prussians, who were expected to enter
Pontmain in a day or two. This
anxiety-ridden community would be
especially receptive to believing that
clouds in the shape of the Virgin
Mary, and messages written under-
neath, meant that their boys would
come home safe and all would be well.
Also, it is important to note the
attention and control that children
command from adults in these “can’t
you see it?” scenarios.

Giving George Andrews the last
word, he suggests that we should “not
refrain from asking any questions that
come to mind when presented with
paranormal phenomena of a religious
nature, nor go to the opposite extreme
of systematically debunking religious
manifestations.” We should, then, ap-
proach these phenomena with an open
mind, rather than through a screen of
conventional preconceptions.®
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« Cosmic
Pulse.

evor jam
Constable

lasmoids That Live in the Sky might be the title of a
campy fifties sci-fi movie, but in this case it’s the
subject of the life work of Trevor James Constable,
and the result of years of scientific research gathered and
corroborated worldwide and presented in his book
Cosmic Pulse of Life. When he is not documenting the exis-
tence of macrobacteria on infrared film, Trevor is doing
some serious “cloudbusting” experiments, explained in his
video Etheric Weather Engineering on the High Seas and in
a forthcoming book. Here, Trevor talks about fringe science,
the invisible realm, and the flummoxing of earthling power
elites by evil entities having no business doing business in
this dimension.

=

Interview
by Joan D'Arc

Mr. Constable, | read that your book, Cosmic Pulse of Life, first
published by Merlin Press in 1976, “shocked the publishing
industry” because of its criticism of official science, a “science”
which has been unable to make a significant finding in the area
of UFO phenomena in over forty years.

Well, first of all, the shock which is alleged to have occurred in the
publishing world is, | think, exaggerated. [However,] | think it had a
serious impact on the UFO world, because people suddenly found that
a large mass of evidence had
been gathered, and it was original
evidence. It hadn’t been put
through any kind of government
or scientific strainer where the
life could be knocked out of it.
This indicated that the UFO thing
was something immeasurably
more complex than just a bunch
of entities climbing into
spaceships over on Venus or Mars
or somewhere else in the universe
and traveling over here to take
part in the life of the Earth in some incomprehensible fashion. It
showed that there was a biological dimension to the whole thing, and
this in turn is the key to the general sequestration of the whole
approach [of] Cosmic Pulse of Life. It is true that, since the days of
Kenneth Arnold, when UFOs first entered the public domain, there has
been no single significant finding in the area of UFO phenomena.

organisms: yo

It’s not a question of having
spaceships or plasmoidal

There are at least two
dimensions to the UFO
phenomenon

Willy’s Wand: This weather control device
(“cloudbuster”) was built by Mr. Constable, based on the
work of Dr. Wilhelm Reich. Constable believes that the
energy manipulated in such units is the operative power
behind UFOs both biological and mechanical.

Inset: A biological UFO attracted by a cloudbuster, at
lower left, and photographed with infared film.

Yet, answers seem to be closer when working with the
theories of Wilhelm Reich and others considered to be in the
realm of “fringe” science.

That is a fact. It is true that answers are closer when you work
with the theories of Wilhelm Reich. Because you must remember that
Reich’s work is rooted in practical matters. And his discovery of this
biological entity, a specific biological energy that he called orgone, set
the entire question of vital force on a completely new basis. Up until
then, it had been sort of a philosophical will-o" the wisp. Reich
changed all that, and by using modern instrumentation and modern
methods he presented evidence of the existence of this biological
power, the thing that makes
every heart beat and which
nobody, but nobody, in the
entire reaches of official
science has yet seen fit to
address.

Why do the High Priests of
Science need to protect the
materialist worldview at all
costs?

[Imagine being] raised from
infancy with chains of inter-
locking and interlacing views
laid upon you and made a part of your method of functioning and
viewing creation, and all this excludes the idea of a biological energy;
there isn’t any pulsation, it’s just chemicals. Then all of a sudden
someone comes along and says “Hey, wait a minute, there is a bio-
force!” And it's physical, it's accessible. You can demonstrate it! Well,
what happens is everything that you know, everything that you have

u have both!
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been taught, everything that makes up the cement of your whole world
view is subject to a very serious disillusionary attack. That is the
reason why they clamp down in official scientific circles at the very
suggestion of specific biological energy, orgone, or as we refer to it in
my phase of weather engineering, chemical ether.

Explain your theory that some UFOs are “plasmoidal living
organisms” which are native, albeit invisible, to our atmosphere
and how you came to realize that these biological entities could
be photographed using infrared film.

As explained in my book, when Dr. Woods and myself started this
work back in 1957, we went after spaceships like everybody else. We
had no consciousness whatever of there being anything else. And when
we used infrared film for the purpose of pursuing objects that were
repeatedly seen and reported worldwide as having come from and often
returned to an invisible state, we recorded not so much spaceships as
these strange plasmoidal living organisms. And there were too many of
them to be ignored, or blown away as aberrations or the results of
faulty processing: the normal excuses that are made for these things.

And, we were not at all happy at the time that we obtained the
first evidence of the plasmoids; not at all, because we wanted
spaceships. We were in that same hard, mechanical idea about these
things, that someone had built these things over in Venus or Mars or
elsewhere, and they jumped in them and flew over here; and they were
cheek by jowl with us on Planet Earth. At least that's what we
wanted to be able to prove.

In actual fact, using infrared film, which extends the range of the
human eye far beyond what the eye itself will register, we got
something else. We got these living organisms, and we got lots of
them. And since that time lots of other people all over the world have
got them. | just got a letter from a gentleman who photographed shoals
of these things over the Western Australia desert. So, they are there
and they have always been there. They are not from anywhere else,
they are what we might call the upper dimension of our physical world.
They have been referred to as macrobacteria: the counterpart at the
upper border of physical nature of the microbes that infest the
sub-sensible realms of physical nature of which we were earlier not
aware. We are aware of them now, because centuries ago the
microscope was discovered and an optical limitation was removed.
Infrared film does the same thing at the upper border of physical
nature, but the things that are found, instead of being extremely small,
they are very vast, sometimes forty or fifty feet across.

So everything fits from a polarity point of view, and finding out that
these things could be recorded with infrared film was simply accidental.
It was not something that was planned, programmed or intended. But
we didn’t shrink from what we found, we pursued it through the years
and we never found any reason to revise it. The work that was done
subsequently in Italy twenty or thirty years later served only to verify
it, as has the work done by other people in Romania, Australia and
elsewhere. All through the years, all of this has been mercilessly
crushed by the people in the UFQ field who feel that they are somehow
serving the truth by killing something that’s alive.

How does orgone energy (“the ether”) relate to your
exobiology theory and your work in Reichian cloudbusting?

| would need a three or four hundred page book to describe my
work in Reichian cloudbusting. In fact, a fairly comprehensive volume
on this is being prepared now and is going to be published by
Borderland Sciences Research Foundation sometime this year. So it is

futile to attempt an interview at this time to describe my work. |
haven't done Reichian cloudbusting in a while; | do things in a
completely different way, | use geometric forms. | do not use the old
time Reichian cloudbuster anymore, although | made good use of it for
many years.

| can only say it is impossible to assemble any kind of valid
exobiology theory if you do not first understand why i is that
everything living on this Earth, from the microbe to the mastodon,
pulsates! That's the thing that you have to elucidate first.

If Reich had lived beyond the mindset of the fifties, do you
think he would have changed his view of UF0s as “machines
from another planet?”

Sure, | think that he would have readily expanded his initial
conception of UFOs as machines from another planet. However, | want
to point out something significant here, and | never tire of re-empha-
sizing this, because it never seems to sink in, that it's not a question of
having spaceships or plasmoidal organisms: you have both! There are at
least two dimensions to the UFO phenomenon. One is the spaceships
idea and the other is the living organisms. And because in the mode of
their manifestation these two aspects of the UFO phenomenon are
mutually confused, nobody seems to have been able to straighten it
out, except me.

People believe that you've got ships from other planets and you
can't have anything else. If you're going to have biological critters in
the upper atmosphere, well then you can’t have the other. You've got
to have both. And what this does is expand your consciousness. And
that is one of the good things about this whole phenomenon in all its
diversity. You've got to get your consciousness expanded and operating

Lunar orgone? Apollo 12 astronaut Alan Bean gave off a
sporadic blue radiance, which Constable believes to be his life
energy (orgone) field. In the 1950s, Dr. Wilhelm Reich is said
to have observed orgone energy in a vacuum, and it, too, was
blue in color.
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along new lines. The old ways are dead and gone, like this civilization
of ours. | certainly helieve that Reich, had he lived, would have
expanded his understanding of these things, because he had the
mentality and the observational power to do so. But, you can't expect
very much of a man at a critical time of his life when he was being
harassed and hounded by the medical profession, the psychiatric
profession, the FDA, and the courts. You can’t expect much from a
man who is under that kind of pressure.

The breaking of the fuel
monopoly is reason enough for
governments who are run from

the shadows and steeped in

corruption to do nothing to

elucidate the principles of
energy that are behind UFOs

What was your theory of space and flying saucer propulsion in
1958, when you wrote your classic book They Live in the Sky, and
how have your theories changed since then? Were you influenced
by Wilhelm Reich's work (described in his book Contact With
Space) and were you pursuing a similar path in your research?

My theories in 1958 | cannot recall for you in detail or compare
them to the views that | hold now. But basically there wasn't a great
deal of difference, it's just that in the meantime more and more
evidence has accumulated. The basic idea that the source of all these
things is the invisible has continued to gain momentum and continued
to gain status because of the derelictions and inadequacies of the
formal theories. Of course | was influenced by Wilhelm Reich, but not
until after | had made my original contribution with They Live in The
Sky. | did not know Reich existed or | might have written that book
differently. That influence came along later and is part of subsequent
development worked out in Cosmic Pulse of Life, which correlates
with work from Romania and Italy.

Does the appearance of UFOs in the skies have anything to do
with the “destruction of the industrial, financial, moral and
spiritual fabric of the USA?" Is the American decline an
engineering job on the part of an otherworld intelligence which
somehow rules the planet Earth through its top power elite?

Everything that has happened and everything that we are seeing
now that shows this ongoing downtrend in American life, the industrial,
financial, moral, spiritual and political fabric of the USA disintegrating,
this is all being brought about by people who are in the body with us.
There is no question about that. This is a function of conspiratorial
activity. It is the inspiration of it that comes from other planes; the
guidance of it. And very often these people have no conception
whatever that they are under psychic control and are being directed
from other planes to do these things by entities who cannot manifest
here themselves. That, in my opinion, is the reality of any infiltration of
the top power elite which is, by the way, not something visible to the
ordinary citizen. It is hidden also, as most people know, down at the
level of the Presidency. Somebody like George Bush, for example,

would be probably at about the fourth layer down in the power
structure. The entire world is run from the shadows and it is well to
keep that in mind.

In your book you state that scores of people believe there is
some undetermined energy principle behind the UFO phenomena,
yet the billion dollar NASA budget does not contain a dime for
UFO investigation. Why does the government bury its head and
continue to pretend there is nothing out of the ordinary
happening in the Earth skies?

Of course it is true that there is an undetermined energy principal
behind the UFO phenomena, and NASA has no hesitation in squashing
billions which it doesn’t have to earn, and spending nothing to
investigate UFOs or even have a small project on them. Nothing. The
reason for it is very complex and relates to the energy question. We
know from Reich’s work that this energy will run motors, and if you
can run motors out of the atmosphere without having to hook into the
power grid, that is a disaster for the world's power structure. The
control of energy is the control of people. It is the control of
economies. So the breaking of the fuel monopoly is reason enough for
governments who are run from the shadows and steeped in corruption
to do nothing to elucidate the principles of energy that are behind
UFOs.

Discuss your statement that “unseen extraphysical entities
have expanded their manipulations and destructive capabilities on
the physical plane via humans they can control.” Do you see this
as an occult influence in top levels of world secret government?

Extraphysical entities with an interest in the earth plane can only
manifest here through correspondences. They do not come down and
land on the White House lawn, because they do not belong to the
Earth plane. So what they have to do is find correspondences within
those in authority and control what they can access and, by those
means, infuse their malevolent ideas and purposes into the civilization.

We were not at all happy at
the time that we obtained the
first evidence of the
plasmoids; not at all, because
we wanted spaceships

On the simplest and broadest basis you may ask yourself why it is that
the US, despite having had the most successful and largest expansion
of production in the history of the world in World War I, grew by
1950 to become a phenomenally prosperous country, and since that
time has been run down mercilessly to a shadow of its former self,
incapable of carrying out even many of its own defense processes,
can't forge its own aircraft carrier anchor chains, stuff like this.
Straight down from a high point. Despite the prodigious proliferation of
computers and other things that are supposed to improve productivity
and increase the standard of living, our standard of living goes down.
The chief agency and the chief link between the ruling authorities, the
real rulers here, and those in the extraphysical realm who are utilizing
them, is the dishonesty of the men on the physical plane. That’s what
opens them to access from the unseen.

In your book you talk about Hitler and the occult influence in
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the machinations of World War Il. Most people do not helieve in
“magic,” but is it more simply understood as a series of deals
made with other-dimensional entities who shouldn’t be trusted?

| referred to Hitler merely in passing and pointed out that he was
essentially the vehicle of Lucifer and it was a Luciferic activity that he
headed in Germany. Anyone who does not understand the difference
between Lucifer, Ahriman [the evil deity in the Zoroastian religion] and
Christ will never know anything about this world. We in the USA are
fully in the clutches not of Lucifer but of his opposite, Ahriman, and the
Ahrimanic powers in general. This is what you are dealing with in the
so-called phenomenon of the Greys, all of which is taking place in the
darkness. It's a significant point, it's a signature. Nothing is out on the
table, nothing is in the light, everything is in the dark.

So the trouble we find ourselves in is a result of bad deals

made by Earth leaders?

0Oh, true to form, | think that these arrangements were originally
entered into with these otherworld entities for the purpose of
attempting to get from them technology that could be used to make
profits, technology that could be exploited and, instead, they found
themselves inextricably enmeshed with entities they could neither
understand nor control. And these were beings who had no trouble
flummoxing them five ways from Friday. The very sound principle from
basic spiritual science is to have no commerce whatever with entities of
this type, to have no commerce whatever with entities who do not
belong here and above all to be honest, since honesty protects you
against all this. Do everything that you want to do, or that you want to
see done, in the broad light of day and right out on the tabletop. That

Nonlethal

continued from page 16

13. In Search of a Nonlethal Strategy,
page 13.

14. Ibid.

15. The US Navy, through its Project Sea
Shadow, has already developed a stealth
boat. Like the Lockheed F117A stealth
fighter, it leaves no radar signature—BBC,
Newsround, April 28, 1993.

16. Taped conversation with Janet Morris,
March 1, 1993.

17. The Wall Street Journal, January 4,
1993.

18. In Search of a Nonlethal Strategy,
page 14.

19. Anna Keeler, “Remote Control
Technology,” Full Disclosure, Ann Arbor,
USA, 1989, page 11.

20. Walden University, 801 Anchor Road
Drive, Naples, FL 33904, USA. Walden
University considers itself a non-traditional
university and does not offer any
undergraduate courses to its students.

21. Brad Steiger, Mysteries of Space and
Time, Prentice Hall, Engelwood Cliffs, New
Jersey, pages 72 and 3. The US Army
Command and General College, Fort
Leavenworth, Kansas, issued this on
Alexander’s career: “Colonel John B.
Alexander, US Army Retired, manages
Anti-materiel Technology at Los Alamos
National Laboratories, Los Alamos, New

Everything is in the dark: Have our leaders made a Faustian
bargain with “otherworldly entities” like this being allegedly
removed from a crashed UFO near Magdelena, New Mexico
in 1947? (Photo from UFO: Journal of Facts, Sept 1991, PO
Box 17206, Tucson, AZ 85710)

is a principle that | think our government relinquished and buried a long
time ago. Alas for America! ®

Mexico. His military assignments included:
Advanced Systems Concepts Office,
Laboratory Command; manager, Technology
Integration Office, Army Materiel
Command; assistant deputy chief of staff,
Technology Planning and Management,
Army Materiel Command; and chief,
Advanced Human Technology, Intelligence
and Security Command.”

22. Taped telephone conversation with
Dr. Scott Jones, August 17, 1992.

23. Taped telephone conversation with
Maj. Edward Dames, June 27, 1992; and
The Bulletin of Atomic Scientists, December
1992, page 6.

24. Col. John B. Alexander, Maj.
Richard Groller and Janet Morris, The
Warrior’s Edge, William Morrow Inc., New
York, 1990.

25. Ibid., page 9.

26. Ibid., pages 9 and 10.

27. Ibid., page 47.

28. Ibid.

29. Ibid.

30. Ibid., pages 72 and 3.

31. Ibid., page 12.

32. Ibid., page 13.

33. The American Security Council
(ASC), Box 8, Boston, Virginia 22713,
USA. ASC is militarist, anti-communist and
right-wing. Formed in the mid-1950s, the
Council acts as a right-wing think-tank on
foreign policy and lobbies for the expansion
and strengthening of US military forces. In

Y

Mr. Constable's book Cosmic Pulse of Life and video
Etheric Weather Engineering on the High Seas are available
from Borderland Sciences, PO Box 429, Garberville, CA

1985 the ASC had 330,000 members. See,
for example, the entry for the ASC in The
Radical Right: A World Directory, compiled
by Ciaran O. Maolain, Longman, London,
1987.

34. Taped telephone conversation with
Janet Morris, March 1, 1993.

35. In 1989, a US Department of Defense
consultant and contractor explained to the
author how he was asked to examine the
possibility of devising operational methods
of transmitting subliminal messages through
the TV screen.

36. “Will the Real Scott Jones please
stand up?,” unpublished paper by George
Hansen and Robert Durant, February 20,
1990, pages 4 and 5.

37. Armen Victorian, “The Birds,” in
UK UFO Magazine, vol. 11, no. 3,
July/August 1992, pp. 4-7.

38. Howard Blum, Out There, Simon and
Schuster, London, 1990, pages 44, 46-51,
55-57.

39. DIA’s letters to author dated July 12,
1991, July 8, 1992 and December 18, 1992.

40. Dr. Christopher “Kit” Green,
BLUEJAY, has admitted that the CIA has
compiled over 30,000 files on UFOs, 200 of
which are extremely interesting. Green was
a key CIA member in examining the UFO
problem for several years.

41. Los Alamos National Laboratory,
“Institutional Plan, Fiscal Year 1992 - Fiscal
Year 1997,” page 14.


NEATPAGEINFO:id=3B6FBD09-88F0-4D56-9BB3-78D8B2CF2F81


SRS

hat really happened during the
infamous “Watergate plane crash” at
Chicago’s airport on December 8, 19727

[Mentioned in Joffre Stewart’s piece in the Spring 1994
Paranoia -Ed.] United Airlines flight 553 out of Washington, D.C.
exploded while landing in Chicago. Aboard were 12 people who
were connected in some way to the burgeoning Watergate
scandal. Among the victims was Dorothy Hunt, wife of former
CIA man (and Watergate burglar) E. Howard Hunt. Evidence
indicated the plane was sabotaged, but independent investigator
Sherman Skolnick made headlines when he charged that the
sabotage had been covered up by the government.

Skolnick discussed his findings when he was the guest on the
December 23, 1993 broadcast of The Spotlight’s nightly radio
call-in talk forum, Radio Free America, with host Tom Valentine.
At the time of the crash, Valentine was a journalist working in
Chicago and became acquainted with Skolnick during the furor
over the loss of flight 553. According to Valentine, “It was the
flight 553 affair that really convinced me this government was
corrupt. | was a meathead and believed in our government. |
knew the medical Establishment was corrupt, but this really
convinced me the government was corrupt.” Skolnick, who has
been a regular guest on Radio Free America, and who is an
adviser to Liberty Lobby's Populist Action Committee, has a
recorded five-minute commentary (changed several times a week)
that people may call 24 hours a day at regular long-distance
rates. The number is (312) 731-1100. Skolnick’s recorded
message brings periodic updates on matters the investigator and
his research team are working on. An edited transcript of
Valentine's interview with Skolnick follows.

From The Spotlight weekly, February 14, 1994
($38/yr, 1-800-522-6292)

Twelve
linked to
Watergate
died in
mystery
cY

The Watergate plane crash is the first investigation you and |
worked on together.

This subject is one of the great forbidden subjects of this country.
You are not supposed to talk publicly about airplanes that have been
sabotaged. If sabotage is ever brought up, it's always in some foreign
country where a bomb blows up the airplane.

Then the loss of the United Airlines flight 563 was not just
fog or pilot error or something like that.

In the history of aviation there have been a number of situations
where there was actual sabotage—not necessarily a bomb—and that
sabotage put the plane down and killed people for political reasons. |
started writing a book about airplane sabotage right after the plane
crash. | called it The Watergate Plane Crash. The reason why was
because on this one plane were 12 people connected to the Watergate
affair.

The disaster happened exactly one month after Richard Nixon had
been re-elected. The Watergate affair had started, but it was not
widely known at the time. Former CIA man (and Watergate burglar) E.
Howard Hunt, part of the so-called White House Plumbers, was under
arrest. It later came out that Hunt was threatening to blow the lid off
the White House if Nixon didn’t take care of him. Hunt wanted $2
million. What Hunt reportedly had was information tending to show
that Nixon, who was in Dallas at the time John F. Kennedy was
murdered, was complicit in the assassination. Hunt's wife Dorothy
was carrying around “hush” money to various witnesses in an effort
to silence them about the Watergate affair. She was on flight 553,
and this time she was traveling under her own name. She was so
concerned about the baggage (which contained $2 million worth of
cashier’s checks and money orders, which some astute people could
have traced back to the Nixon White House) that she bought an extra
first class seat for her baggage (and the valuables therein). The press
later said there was only $10,000 in her possession, but that was
false.

We know about this because of records of the National
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Transportation Safety Board which had the manifest of the airplane. A
year after the crash, an air baggage robbery gang was prosecuted in
the case of U.S. vs. Joseph Cirelli. | was the only journalist who
covered the hearing. There an FBI document came out showing that
this criminal mob, a Mafia family, had somehow penetrated the crash
zone, stolen Mrs. Hunt's luggage, and were fencing $2 million worth of
valuables for $5 million. Why? How? Because these money orders could
be traced back to the Nixon White House and as a consequence were
worth more as blackmail information.

The plane was steered into the ground. It's not technically accurate
to call it a “crash.” The plane was pancaked
and then caught on fire. Now bear in mind
that every airport has what they call the
“outer marker” which enables the pilot to
know his altitude. The outer marker was
working for the plane ahead of flight 553 and
for the plane behind flight 553, but as 553
approached the marker, it mysteriously went
out. Now here’s the mystery. There were 150
FBI agents waiting on the ground. The
government’s own documents show that the
fire department responded within a minute and
a half. The FBI headquarters in Chicago is
downtown, 12 miles away. If they got on a
helicopter off their headquarters roof they
couldn’t have made the 12 miles faster than
the fire department. However, when the fire
department came near the crash zone, the FBI
had cordoned off the zone and kept the
firefighters from approaching the plane. A
number of police officers were also held back
and kept in a nearby park and not allowed to
approach the plane. The only ones who were
able to approach the plane were the FBI.

| found out about this later, and for several
months thereafter some of the press called me
a liar, but finally a letter came from the acting
director of the FBI, confirming that | was
correct, and that there were a large number of
FBI people there. He cryptically put in his
letter that it was justified because they were
investigating “airline piracy.” Which means, in
other words, was somebody trying to steal
luggage on that plane, en route, and therefore
the FBI was waiting? We believe the FBI was
waiting there to arrest Mrs. Hunt because of
the blackmail scheme. | went to the National
Transportation Safety Board [NTSB, which
investigates crashes], and they set up shop in Chicago and held a
hearing in the spring of 1973. They concluded there was ice on the
plane’s tail. | interviewed a number of their witnesses and found the
NTSB did not bring out the correct facts. | brought a lawsuit against
the NTSB, and, unknown to United Airlines, my friends liberated the
entire government file of 1,300 documents and pictures, and we knew
it was sahotage from the government’s own records. | got on a lot of
radio talk shows at the time, but | didn’t tell them that we had the
entire file. United Airlines got upset about me being on radio saying

Reports showed
that [Watergate
burglar E. Howard
Hunt's wife]
Dorothy Hunt and
the other Watergate
people on hoard the
flight had very high
cyanide levels in
their bodies

E. Howard Hunt

these things, and they demanded that the NTSB reopen the hearings to
prove that | was a liar. At the two days of hearings in June, 1973, at
which time they expected to prove me a liar, some 250 reporters
showed up from all over the world. CBS had closed-circuit video
coverage for their higher-ups since one of their reporters, Michelle
Clark, had been sitting next to Mrs. Hunt.

Now remember, United Airlines didnt know that my friends had
swiped the NTSB files on the crash. So when they turned on all the
lights for the videotaping process (for the CBS executives), at that
moment | opened up my suitcase at the hearing and spread all of the
documents out on a great table before me. There
was a panel of five NTSB members there. | said,
“Now here's your entire file. | admit that | swiped
it. If you want to arrest me, do it right now in
front of all of these reporters.” For two entire
days | showed from their own records that they
knew it was sabotage. The Chicago Tribune
took a picture of me at the table, but they
chopped off the portion of me pointing at the
documents, and they ran a headline saying “No
proof whatsoever of sabotage.”

The Associated Press’s national wire ran an
objective story, to their credit, saying that |
presented a “heavily documented case of sahotage
regarding a flight where Watergate figures died.”
Only one newspaper in this country, however, ran
that AP story. It was a newspaper in Seattle. All
of the other newspapers disregarded that major
story carried on the AP’s national wire (known as
the “A” wire, which carries all the major stories).
The reason for this is simple: United Airlines was
the largest airline in North America, and were this
to have been publicized they could have lost their
certificate to fly. Edward Carlson, United Airlines
board chairman, was very close to Nixon.

Now as | mentioned, CBS News reporter Michelle
Clark was on the plane beside Mrs. Hunt. She
was also a friend of Rep. George Colins (D-lll.)
who also died on that crash. At the later
hearings, we had the chief assistant of
Congressman Collins. Apparently Collins had
somehow found out about the Watergate affair
before the break-in and had told Michelle Clark
about it, and she knew about it. What happened
was that certain people decided to sit on matters
for their own financial gain.

Here's briefly what happened. | had a mutual
friend who knew Miss Clark’s family. They said
that since Michelle had died in the crash, they were going to blow the
lid off United Airlines, which is owned largely by the Rockefeller
family’s Chase Manhattan Bank. They were also going to use this
information against CBS (Michelle's employer) which was part of the
cover-up. Using my material they got what was said to be as much as
a $5 million settlement from CBS by remaining silent about what the
family found out. Cardiss Collins, the widow of Congressman Collins,
took his place, and from my information she was in favor of squelching
the whole affair.

s

continued page 35
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ver 2,000 years ago, the Mayan

civilization of Central America built centers

for astronomy which depict a complex

mathematical system and a highly
developed hieroglyphic code. According to
information contained in the new and massive
Matrix, Volume IV, the purpose of this elaborate
record keeping appears to have been to correlate
Earth and other planetary cycles within our solar
system with a harmonic Matrix of a Master
Program. This Matrix represented a larger view of
the solar system than could have been obtained by
an earth-bound civilization. Was it the mission of
the Maya to place the Earth and its solar system in
sync with this Master Program?

Weird Science

The answer might lie in the “weird science” of
the Mayans who, some insist, were extraterrestrial
visitors. According to Matrix IV author Valdamar
Valerian, the Mayans’ Master Program included the
setup of a planetary grid system which would
encompass the “cyclical harmonics” of all
the planets in our solar system. What could
have been the purpose of this Program?

In studying Mayan science, researcher
Jose Arguelles, cited by Valarian, has
shown that they used a harmonic
mathematical Matrix involving a system of
13 numbers and 20 symbols called Tzolkin. This language and its
corollary thought patterns were “left behind” when the main group of
the Maya departed the Earth. But how should we interpret the data and
what does it have to do with “the end of the world as we know it?”

In Mayan science, the Universe IS the mind; the universality of
consciousness is an important corollary. Since the Universe is mental
rather than material in nature, all things are alive with intelligent energy.
In addition, all matter is comprised of tones on a “harmonic frequency
spectrum perceptible to the sense of touch.” Therefore, the form which
matter takes is the “shape of consciousness at a particular resonant
frequency juncture.” A resonant frequency juncture is two or more tonal
spectrums joining momentarily “in conformance with universal purpose.”

the May

Earth Acupuncture

Virtually all prehistoric peoples were aware of the fact that the
planet we live on has an intelligence structure as a living organism,
which some called Gaia. In Mayan science, the galaxy is an immense
organism possessing order and consciousness. Likewise, the planet Earth
is a conscious organism and, just as all living organisms possess a “light
body,” the planet has a light body that is a “consciously articulated
resonant structure that regulates and allows for the fulfillment of
evolutionary destiny.” This planetary light body is embedded in a
memory program (“a radiant information bank”) and can only be
activated by conscious, cooperative effort. This science is known as
Geomancy, and can be thought of as Earth Acupuncture.

Happy Graduation Day!

The resonant body of the Earth has been in dissonance due to
humanity’s use of atomic energy, beginning in 1945, which has affected
the resonant structure. According to Matrix IV, problems “experienced
by the human psyche have their origin in the impact of radioactive and
electromagnetic pollution on the infrastructure of DNA.” This has caused
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a major increase in randomness [cancer,
aids?] and entropy of human behavior, which
complements what is occurring on the
planetary level. In fact, some indigenous
peoples believe that phenomena like crop
circles and night lights are emanating from
Gaia, the Earth Mother, as she complains
and warns us of great catastrophes to
come. Is a great change about to occur?
During the passage through the Great Cycle,
the advanced DNA life forms of Earth have
already begun a process of acceleration and
harmonization resembling a wave harmonic.
The conclusion of the Cycle in the year
2012 will mean a major upgrading of the
light life; an acceleration of evolution. We
are graduating!

Evolution and the Mayan Return
During what Valerian calls the Mayan
Return, the Earth will attain “conscious
articulation of its light body” and will enter
its next evolutionary phase. In this
last period of the Cycle, as 2012
approaches, the planet will be
vibrating as never before: the
Goddess Gaia will have a cosmic
orgasm! This coincides with a
coming axis shift, which is taken by
some to mean the shift into the fourth vibrational plane.

As Matrix IV tells us, each person is “empowered to connect
directly, sensuously and electromagnetically” with the energy
information emanating from the galactic core.

This cosmic information may be the density waves or beams which
sweep through the galaxy and influence evolution. Mayan science
recognizes different coexisting levels of being and consciousness, which
pass together through phases of interactive development during the
discrete evolutionary cycles. In this view, the emergence of Homo
Sapiens represents a particular stage in the evolutionary cycle of the
star system in which we live. According to Mayan science, the stage
called Homo Sapiens has a duration of 26,000 years. This correlates
well with the geological record.

Baktun-12

The Mayans called the period in which we are living Baktun-12. The
period from 1992 to 2012 is the 52nd Katun period in the 13th Cycle.
According to the Mayans, it is the last period in the great galactic
synchronization. In other words, that’s all She rote! Leaving the galactic
synchronization beam in 2012, the Great Cycle will begin again.

According to Jose Arguelles, this vibratory quickening of the
planetary light body will not be noticeable until the absolute conclusion
of the change. This means it won't hurt at all; well, maybe just a little
psychic pinch. But the pinch you feel has to do with how ready you are
for the process of evolutionary development to the fourth density of
consciousness. We are about to experience an intense shift which will
propel us out of the three-dimensional experience. You will need no
money. You will need no car. You will not need 4-D glasses. You will
not need a body. You will not even need wings. While it is NOT the end
of the world, it IS the end of the world as we know it. Hallelujah! ®

To get free information about the Matrix volumes, write to:
Leading Edge Research, POB 481-M. U58, Yelm, WA, CF 98597 CF
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THE LINDBERGH

KIDNAPPING HOAX

The Lindbergh Kidnapping Hoax.
Gregory Ahlgren and Stephen
Monier. Branden Publishing, 1993
21.95

Book Review: Crime of the Century:

efore Polly Klaas, there was Charles
Augustus. The twenty month old
son of aviator hero Charles
Lindbergh and his wife Anne was
abducted March 1, 1932. Seventy-two days
later, the baby's body was found in the
woods a short distance from the Lindbergh’s
house near Hopewell, New Jersey. The crime
and subsequent trial were a media circus, the
forerunner of today’s tabloid TV. Newspapers
hyped it as the “Crime of the Century.”
Lindbergh was assisted in his investigation of
the crime by the colorful “Wild Bill” Donovan,
who would go on to lead the Office of
Strategic Services, precursor to the CIA. Even
imprisoned gangster Al Capone offered his
assistance in solving the case (the offer was
rejected,) and some couples actually wrote to
the Lindberghs offering their own children as
substitutes. As the authors note, “Everybody
was getting in on the act.”
A 2% year NJ State Police Investigation
led by Col. Norman Schwartzkopf (father of
the Desert Storm General) led to the

conviction of Bruno
Richard Hauptmann. As
the authors demonstrate,
the evidence against
Hauptmann was at best
circumstantial. In fact, it's
now clear that there was
a conspiracy to railroad
the immigrant German
carpenter. But Ahigren and
Monier take the conspiracy
scenario further: They
argue that the entire kid-
napping was a hoax,
orchestrated by Lindbergh
to cover up his negligent
murder of his son. Like the
evidence against
Hauptmann, the evidence
against (Un-) Lucky Lindy
is circumstantial, though
surprisingly persuasive. For
example:

® Lindbergh ordered his son cremated
without an autopsy.

® The evening of the abduction, Lindbergh
had been scheduled to make a New York
appearance. The fanatically punctual flyer never
showed up, even though the event took place
hours before the kidnapping was discovered. He
never explained where he was during that time.

® That night, the metitious Lindbergh
appeared in the Hopewell home driveway 45
minutes later than normal, honking his car hom
as if to make sure his apparent arrival would be
noticed.

® |t was Lindbergh who “discovered” the
alleged ransom note the night of the kidnapping,
on a nursery window sill. His wife and
household staff, however, had seen nothing
there when the abduction was first discovered.

® The kidnapper not only knew which room
Charles, Jr. was kept in; they also knew which
single window of all the room’s latched
windows had a defective shutter that allowed it
alone to be opened from the outside. And they
somehow knew that the family would be at the
Hopewell home that night, a change from their
established routine of spending weekdays at
their second home. :

©® When nursemaid Betty Gow and wife
Anne discovered the empty crib, their immediate
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thought was that Col. Lindbergh himself had
done it, because he had staged a “kidnap-
ping” of the child two months earlier.
(After throwing the household into a panic, a
laughing Lindbergh had finally admitted it was
a hoax.)

After establishing the Colonel’s penchant
for such disturbing and cruel “practical jokes”
(a habit he happened to lose after the alleged
kidnapping,) defense lawyer Ahlgren and police
official Monier present their scenario,
summarized here:

Lindbergh arrives home as usual, at
approximately 7:45. He parks out of sight of
the isolated home. Planning to carry out
another kidnapping “joke,” he uses a makeshift
ladder to enter the nursery and take his baby.
But on this windy and rainy night, the top

When the nursemaid
and his wife
discovered the empty
crib, their immediate
thought was that
Lindbergh himself
had done it, because
he had staged a
“kidnapping” of the
child two months
earlier

rung breaks and the adjoining side rail of the

_ ladder splits. (This is how the ladder was

found.) He drops the baby, crushing his skull.
(During each of several police reenactments,
an officer starting down the ladder slipped and
dropped the bundle representing the baby.) He
takes the body a few miles south and leaves
it in the woods. (Interestingly, suspect
Hauptmann lived north of the Hopewell home;
so why would he have risked traveling out of
his way and then doubling back, prolonging his
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time at the crime scene?) He then drives up to
the front of the house at 8:25, honking his hom
as if to ensure that his “arrival” be noted. At
approximately 9:15, he claims to hear a
suspicious noise outside, although wife Anne at
his side hears nothing, and their high-strung
terrier Wahgoosh never barks. Lindbergh plants
the “ransom note” soon after the disappearance
is discovered. The ransom note reads in part:

Dear Sir! Have 50.000$ redy 25.000$ in
20$ bills 15.000 in 10sbills
and 10.000$ in 5% bills. After
24 days we will inform you
were to deliver the mony. We
warn you for making anyding
public or for notify the Police
The child is in gut care.

By using some simple
German (“gut” for “good”) and
spelling some words as he
heiieved a German immigrant
would pronounce them
(“anyding” for “anything”),
Lindbergh attempted to draw
suspicion away from himself
and onto South Jersey's large
immigrant population. As the
authors astutely point out, “A
German struggling with the
English language often says
“d" instead of "th” as the "th”
sound does not exist in German...(but) a German
would not spell a word with a "d” instead of a
“th”; it is not that he thinks the word is spelled
with a "d”, rather, he knows (how) it is spelled
but he simply cannot pronounce the "th.” The
note, then, is an attempt of someone to imitate
a German immigrant's speech.

The authors do a thorough job of cataloging

The baby celebrates his first (and only)
birthday

The escape ladder

the many disturbing issues surrounding the trial
of Bruno Richard Hauptmann. For example,

® The ransom note and subsequent letters
referred to “we,” but Hauptmann was the only
person charged.

® Hauptmann was a carpenter by trade. Yet
the kidnap ladder was of an unusually sloppy
and amateurish construction.

® [Equally sloppy was the way Hauptmann
was “identified” in a police lineup consisting of
the tall Hauptmann and two
short and stocky policemen of
Iish descent, one still in
uniform.
® Hauptmann, who spoke only
broken English, was not afford-
ed a translator during the trial.
The authors present a
clear-headed and reasonable
analysis. They are not
conspiracy-mongers. For
example, they report that the
corpse found in the woods was
33 inches long, while Charles,
Jr. had been measured by a
doctor just two weeks hefore
the kidnapping at 29 inches.
Was the body of another babhy
placed in the woods? Digging a
bit deeper, they learned that
the original doctor records
actually indicated a height of 29", or 33 inches.
The foot abbreviation (') had simply been lost in
subsequent reports. In addition, they take the
suicides of two suspects during the investigation
at face value, and resist making dark but unsub-
stantiated speculations.

However, the authors cannot, and to their
credit do not attempt to, use the substantial
evidence that Hauptmann was framed to bolster
their claim that Lindbergh was the real
kidnapper. In this sense, the large part of the
book dealing with Hauptmann really does
nothing to advance their theory. Also, they fail
to adequately explore the possibility that the
kidnapping was an inside job, carried out in part
by a household staff member.

In addition, the narrative drags in spots, as
when the authors provide too much detail in
their critique of the testimony of “wood expert”
Arthur Koehler. (Sample: “He had arrived at the
rate of 232.5 feet per minute by assuming that
all top cutting heads revolved at 3,000
revolutions per minute... A speed of 232.5 feet
per minute would in fact result in a spacing of
ninety-three hundredths of an inch each
revolution...” Well, you get the idea.) Lost in all
this sawmill esoterica is the stark fact that the
ladder rail that police said matched a floor
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board in Hauptmann’s attic was in fact
thicker than the board it was supposedly
cut from.

Which is just one more fact that
suggests that Hauptmann's state execution,
rather than the kidnapping itself, was the
true Crime of the Century. ®

Al Hidell
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he title for this review is taken from a statement made by
Attorney General Janet Reno regarding the reason behind the
government’s infamous 1993 raid on the Branch Davidian
church at Mount Carmel (near Waco, Texas.) In this instance, it
appears that the federal government decided to show “concern” for
the children by murdering them. If the reader feels that the word
“murder” is too strong, then a viewing of Waco II: The Big Lie
Continues is in order. This latest video by Linda Thompson goes far
in revealing not only the major players involved in this atrocity, but
also names those who are quite willing to further their own political
careers hy assisting in the coverup. Among the latter are the major
media outlets. Most of the footage seen in this video was retrieved

CONGERNS
FOR THE
GHILDREN

Video Review: Waco II: The Big Lie Continues. By Linda
Thompson. The American Justice Federation, 3850

So. Emerson Ave, Suite E, Indianapolis, IN 46203.
$23.95 including postage. Orders: 1-800-749-9939.

Review by Mark Westion

from satellite feeds provided by the major networks. These supposed
guardians of democracy have seen these images but they have not
shown them to us.

For instance, the official version of the story states that the initial
raid on Mount Carmel failed when federal agents came under the
superior fire power of a Davidian ambush. However, the video footage
of the event shows BATF (Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms)
agents firing wildly into the front of the house. There is no return fire
on the part of the Davidians. The video then goes on to show the
BATF agents carrying the lifeless body of 8 year old Cyrus Koresh. It
was his misfortune to be playing in his own front yard on that fateful
day. Only after David Koresh was fired upon while appealing for calm
did the Davidians take up arms to protect themselves. During this
initial assault, Koresh tried to reason with the authorities by dialing
911.

Technically, the Davidians had a legal right to defend themselves
against the BATF. According to Texas penal code Subchapter C,
Article 9.31-Self Defense:

“Use of force to resist arrest or search is justified if an officer
uses greater force than necessary to make the arrest or search” or
“when the actor reasonably believes the force is immediately
necessary.”

Unfortunately for the Davidians, right and reason did not apply in

this case. It did not even matter to the authorities that the action
taking place was being perpetrated under a misdated warrant. With
the help of the military’s Psychological Operations Department, the
Davidians had been sufficiently pre-demonized. This was accomplished
by having the local Waco Tribune-Herald run a collection of ad
hominems against Koresh entitled “Sinful Messiah.” This Psy/Ops work
was conducted throughout the ensuing standoff by the implementation
of “non-lethal” weaponry. [See related article “Psychic Warfare and
Non-Lethal Weapons” on page 13]

These mind control techniques were documented in Thompson’s
Waco the Big Lie and are studied in more depth in Waco the Big Lie
Continues, along with evidence of the direct involvement of Janet
Reno in these programs. Adding insult to injury, shortly after the FBI
incinerated the Branch Davidians for having the nerve to embarrass
the Bureau, one of the major networks produced an official movie of
the week version of what happened. This is standard operating
procedure for the military propagandists, according to Psy/Ops Manual,
Army FM 33-1; P10-4: Motion Pictures: “Most children and a high
percentage of adults accept without question presumably factual
information presented in films..."

In the words of Linda Thompson, the “free press consists of those
handpicked to tell you lies.” All thnse not handpicked are threatened
and beaten by military troops, as this video chillingly shows. What else
can be expected when the media is kept at a distance of two miles
and spoon-fed the government line by mouthpieces like Bob Ricks.
Considering that much of the footage in Waco Continues was shot
from two miles away, the clarity of the images is surprising. Because
of this fact, one might imagine that the next Waco incident will not be
filmed at all...for national security reasons, of course!

Anyone who saw Thompson's first video, Waco: the Big Lie will
never forget the so-called “roof scene,” in which four BATF agents are
shown climbing a ladder onto a second story roof to enter a window.
After tossing a grenade through the window, three of the agents enter
the same window. The next scene shows the fourth agent firing
through the window that the other three had just entered. He is then
forced off the roof by a barrage of bullets fired back at him through
the wall.

All three agents who had entered through that window were later
found dead from gunshot wounds. Waco Continues goes into greater
depth regarding this incident. Through testimony provided by other
agents, new evidence reveals that while these three agents were
entering the building from the west side, three others were entering an
east window. Slow motion photography and computer graphics also
demonstrate that some of the bullets entering the room came from
helicopters hovering above.

One can easily imagine the scene inside the building. Pitch black
with smoke from the grenade explosions, east meets west in a
heightened state of anxiety. Shots are fired in panic, choppers are
called in for backup fire support, and the Davidians are blamed for the
“friendly fire” deaths. The victims of this fiasco never saw a hospital.
Instead, they were treated at the scene by a private (i.e. government)
physician. Interestingly, three of the four agents who died in this raid
bore the same “execution style” wound entering just above the left
temple and exiting at the back of the skull. One had a hole in his
throat that the coroner described as a “field tracheotomy.” He later
recanted this statement during court testimony, calling it a bullet
wound (shades of JFK?)

L 7
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Even more strange (coincidental?) is the fact that the three agents
who were killed after entering the west window, Conway C. LaBleu,
Todd W. McKeehan, and Robert J. Williams had all been assigned as
bodyguards to Bill Clinton during the presidential campaign. The
suspicious nature of this incident has led Linda Thompson to speculate
that “someone in the government wanted these men to be real dead.”
Of all the dead and wounded among the ranks of the BATF, not one
was proven to be the result of aggression by the Branch Davidians. In
fact, most wounds were inflicted by grenades, “friendly fire” in other
words.

Although the BATF sustained many casualties during this initial raid,
the Agency’s collective suffering pales in comparison to the horrors
visited upon the families living at Mount Carmel. The descriptions of
the ways in which the children died is especially poignant. Doctor
Rodney Crowe, a coroner at the scene, appeared on the Maurey
Povich Show to tell America that of the children’s bodies found in the
underground bunker, “three of them died from the concrete in the
bunker that fell on them, 21 died
from gunshot wounds and the rest
died of smoke inhalation and, of
course, suffocation due to being
buried in the debris when the
bunker collapsed.”

The reason for the collapse of
the bunker is well documented in
Waco Continues. This bunker was
constructed of concrete and buried
in the backyard. It had an entrance
from the house via a tunnel. It had another entrance outside in the
yard. The bunker should have been a very safe place to be if
something happened to the-main house. The video
shows a tank parked adjacent to the bunker’s
outside entrance. FBI agents are shown exiting the
tank, presumably to enter the bunker through the
outer door. At this point, the tank can be seen
knocking down a corner of the house, effectively
cutting off the tunnel leading to the bunker.
Smoke then can be seen rising from the outer
entrance to the bunker. All this occurred hours
prior to the fire in the main house. The major
networks filmed all of this yet never raised any
questions. The weight of this visual evidence sug-
gests that the FBI deliberately killed the children
first. Outlandish as this may seem, one must
acknowledge what one sees with ones own eyes.

Who could be so bloodthirsty? The callousness
of some of the federal agents is underscored by a
statement made by one of their own on that fateful day. Staring into a
video camera being held by a fellow FBI man he boasts, “Honed to a
fine edge, honed to kill!” More killing is displayed later on that
infamous morning when two specially retrofitted combat engineer
vehicles (CEV's) move in. These two Vietnam era tanks were modified
at Fort Hood Texas to carry flame-throwers. [See Paranoia Issue 4].
Despite the fact that authorities tried their best to hide this fact, the
damning evidence was clearly visible. These CEV's, along with other
tanks and helicopters, were supplied by the military at Fort Hood in
defiance of the Posse Comitatus Act. This law specifically prohibits
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East meets west in a
heightened state of anxiety.
Shots are fired in panic,
choppers are called in for
backup fire support...

Killed at Waco: Cyrus Koresh

the military from using any equipment or personnel against American
citizens.

In one especially harrowing scene, one of the CEV's is shown
tearing through a second story wall. As the CEV backs out of the
building, a man can be seen clinging to its gun barrel. Unable to scrape
this hapless victim off the barrel by ramming the wall again, the
operator of the CEV torches the man with its flame-thrower. The
victim and debris then fall to the ground in a flaming heap. Not
surprisingly, R.J. Craig, the FBI agent who was driving the vehicle,
was the agent who testified that he saw Davidians starting the fire.
His statements were corroborated by Paul Gray, Chief Fire Investigator
for Waco. Though ostensibly an independent authority, Gray in reality
had numerous ties to the BATF, specifically that his office was in the
BATF building for ten years, his wife works for BATF, and he carried a
card identifying himself as a BATF Fire Investigator.

While claiming that allegations of child abuse were behind the siege,
the government ignored the testimony of qualified psychological
counselors and theologians and opted
instead for the advice of two groups
whose credentials are spurious at best.
One of these, the Anti-Defamation
League, used to be known as the
Jewish Anti-Defamation League. What
their motive could be for getting
involved is open to conjecture. The
second group is known as the Cult
Awareness Network. The head of this
group, a convicted jewel thief named
Rick Ross, bills himself as a self-styled deprogrammer. This unholy
alliance of ADL-CAN has a long history of raising the same unproven
charges of “perverted sex, child abuse and
brainwashing” against its victims. Such damaging
allegations seldom need to be proven; merely making
them is sufficient.

There were other charges made against Koresh hy
private parties and, though some may have felt that
they were truly wronged by Koresh, the video
demonstrates that others were motivated by greed.
Such was the case of Marc Breault. Breault's
testimony that he saw young girls leaving the
bedroom of David Koresh was instrumental in the
formulation of abuse charges raised by ADL-CAN.
The fact that Breault is legally blind makes him a
strange eye witness indeed!

The government even had the audacity to admit one
of its lies regarding these charges against Koresh.
When asked to provide video documentation that the
children still inside the house were unharmed, Koresh gladly complied.
Page eleven of the negotiator's log states that when the video tape
was reviewed there was “concern that if the tapes were released to
the media, Koresh would gain much sympathy.” Janet Reno then lied
to the media by claiming that the Davidians had refused persistent
requests with the negotiators to send out a video of the children.
Koresh could not counter these lies because the FBI had (illegally) cut
off communications between Mount Carmel and the outside world.

These videos were only recently shown on one of the national
info-tainment programs, presented by Diane Sawyer, member of the
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Council on Foreign Relations. The only reason they were shown at all is
because the few surviving Branch Davidians had recently been found
innocent of the charges brought against them. This Spectacle was
definitely an attempt at damage control on the part of the shadow
government. Her slant, of course, was that the evil Koresh was
responsible for the dreadful loss of these young souls.

Looking back on all the events which led up to the tragedy at Waco,
you would have to start the trail at the doorstep of people like Marc
Breault. It was he and his cohorts who got ADL-CAN involved; it was

years later, history repeats itself. I'm sure that the Nazis did not
consider setting fire to a Jewish ghetto to be a criminal act. Neither
did the perpetrators of the Waco massacre. If they had considered it
a crime, then they would have preserved the area as a crime scene.
Instead, they immediately bulldozed the ruins, thus destroying the
evidence.

The official and “independent” investigation which followed was a
whitewash. Initiated by Treasury Secretary Lloyd Bensten, it was
conducted by the likes of Edwin 0. Guthman, Henry S. Ruth, Jr., and

ADL-CAN that got the
BATF involved; it was
the BATF that got the
FBI involved; and it
was the FBI that got
the military from Fort
Hood involved. In the
final analysis, it was
the heat caused by the
combination of all these separate forces which caused the inevitable to
happen.

Koresh's “crime” was that he supposedly owed taxes on a gun.
That’s what's truly scary about this case. In the eyes of the shadow
government run by Clinton, Bentsen, Reno, et. al., we are all potential
Davidians. If you own a weapon, then your home is a “well armed
compound.”

Of all the ironies regarding Waco, foremost has to be the fact that
on the very day that Mount Carmel burned to the ground, President
Clinton was in Washington dedicating the National Holocaust Museum.
Exactly fifty years to the day that the Nazis had burned the Warsaw
Ghetto, Clinton said these words..."The holocaust began when the most
civilized country of its day unleashed unprecedented acts of cruelty and
hatred, abetted by perversions of science, philosophy and law.” So, fifty

The holocaust began when the most civilized
country of its day unleashed unprecedented acts
of cruelty and hatred, abetted by perversions of

science, philosophy and law
-Bill Clinton

Willie L.
Williams
(presently L.A.
Chief of
Police). All
three of these
“independent
investigators”
had direct
involvement in the police fire-bombing, investigation and subsequent
coverup of the M.O.V.E. headquarters in Philadelphia, on May 13, 1985.

The Nazis paid for their crimes at Nuremberg. Will Bensten, Reno and
Clinton, et. al. ever face the same music? Don’t hold your breath. Such
trials are the spoils of victory. The perpetrators are still in power and
will remain so as long as the agenda of the New World Order holds
sway over our lives. Fortunately, they still can’t stop people like Linda
Thompson from producing excellent documentaries like Waco II: The
Big Lie Continues.®

Above, photo taken from the video shows the flame-throwing
tank used at Waco
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Satanic child abuse
coverup!

by Al Hidell
n the early 1980s, allegations began to circulate that children in day-care centers and

schools were being sexually molested and forced to participate in Satanic rituals. Some

religious leaders and law enforcement officials went so far as to suggest that there is a
nationwide Satanic cult at work, forcing children to engage in sexual acts, drink blood, eat
excrement, and watch horrible human and animal sacrifices. And they warned that this and
other “Satanic crime” is on the increase.

Is there any basis for these fantastic charges? First of Satanic serial killer. At least two other serial killers (Henry Lee

all, it is undisputed that individual vandalisms,
mutilations, and murders have been committed by
self-proclaimed Satanists (perhaps the most infamous
being California’s “Night Stalker,” serial killer Richard
Ramirez.) And the pedophile population undoubtedly
contains its share of Satanists (as well as members of
other, more conventional groups.) It is also reasonable to
assume that the public perception—considered an unfair
generalization by many in the Satanist community—that

Satanists are devoted to evil and violence would attract

people of such inclination to “devil-worship.”
And consider that Richard Ramirez isn’t the only

Lucas and “Son of Sam” David Berkowitz) have stated that
they killed as part of two (unrelated) Satanic cults. However, as
Arthur Lyons suggests in his sympathetic history of Satanism
Satan Wants You, “Even when an individual or group claiming
to worship the Devil is involved in crimes, nfotivations are
often not easy to sort out.” He suggests that, if a conspiracy
exists, it is among the anti-Satanist conspiracy-mongers who
have gained financial benefit from various books, seminars,
and talk show appearances.

Baby stealers

As Lyons points out, the idea of an underground secret
society dedicated to evil and the destruction of civilization has

The McMartin

Scandal

he McMartin Preschool was established

in Manhattan Beach, California in 1966
[declared the first year of the Satanic Age by
Church of Satan founder Anton LaVey-ed.] by
Virginia McMartin. Among the employees
were her daughter Peggy McMartin Buckey
and her grandchildren (Mrs. Buckey’s children)
Raymond Buckey and Peggy Ann Buckey.
The first inkling something was wrong at the
school came in August of 1983, when Mrs.
Judy Johnson reported to the Manhattan
Beach Police Department that she believed
her son had been molested by Raymond
Buckey. Although Buckey was initially arrest-
ed, he was later released. However, the

police continued the investi-

of McMartin school students
that an investigation was under way. Over
several months in the winter of 1983 and
1984, some 400 children were interviewed
extensively. Evidence indicated many of the
children’s stories about molestation they had
experienced coincided.

Satanic Rituals
Many of the children described what

appeared to have been Satanic rituals, includ-

ing the sacrifice of animals, which accom-
panied the sexual molestation. The children
also described having been secretly taken
away from the preschool building to the
outside through “tunnels.” According to the
children, acts of molestation also took place
in these tunnels. Investigators determined
that, in their judgment, at least 41 of the

gation and alerted the families

children interviewed had been victimized. This
led to the formal convening of a grand jury
by then-Los Angeles District Attorney Robert
Philobosian. It was in March of 1984 that
the McMartin family members were indicted,
along with three other preschool employees,
Mary Ann Jackson, Babette Spitler and Betty
Raidor, on charges of child molestation.

Death Threats

They were charged with having sexually
abused at least 18 children over a 10-year
period, and it was charged they had used
death threats to keep the children from
talking about their experiences. The prelimi-
nary hearings in the case took an entire
18-month period—the longest preliminary
hearing in California history. By January of
1986, newly elected Los Angeles District
Attorney Ira Reiner announced the evidence
was insufficient to warrant a trial for five of
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been around at least since the second century. Interestingly,
these groups have often been thought to engage in incest and
cannibalism, perhaps society’s two biggest taboos. As Lyons
reports, it is ironic that “Christians were the first to be
accused, by the Romans. But as Christianity gained power,
Jews took their place...being portrayed as baby-stealing
monsters.” Indeed, as historian Norman Cohen has found,
well into the twentieth century it was a widespread belief in
Eastern Europe that Jews used the blood of Christian babies
to make Passover bread. Even today, according to Lyons,
“We still need the bogeyman to
articulate those dark, irrational
forces that threaten to
overwhelm us.”

Secret tunnels

Allegations of ritualistic,
Satanic child abuse were behind
the longest and costliest
criminal trial in American
history, the McMartin
Preschool case. Because the
case resulted in no convictions, and the mother who initiated
the investigation was said to have a history of mental
problems—she later died of an apparent suicide—many have
dismissed the entire possibility of Satanic ritual abuse.

The 1992 trial of Frances and Daniel Keller, however,
was a challenge to skeptics. For the first time, clear
allegations of Satanic ritualistic abuse emerged. And it was
the first such multiple victim/multiple perpetrator case to
result in convictions (of sexual assault.) The Kellers were
accused of forcing children to witness a baby sacrifice and
drink the blood of a sacrificed dog. They were said to have
buried children alive, and forced them to watch as they dug

The children stated that they
had been forced to participate
in Satanic rituals, including
animal sacrifices, in secret
tunnels beneath the school

up bodies in a cemetary one mile from the Keller’s day care
center. During the trial, news cameras captured Daniel
Keller twice making an odd hand gesture. Some believe that
it was a Satanic hand signal meant to intimidate the child
witnesses, but defense attorneys mock the charge as
ludicrous. -

Despite the Keller convictions, the McMartin Preschool
case continues to define (and weaken) the case for ritual
Satanic abuse in the public mind. (See sidebar, “The
McMartin Scandal.”) Nearly 400 children were interviewed
during the initial investigation,
and investigators believed that
at least 41 of them had in fact
been molested. The children
stated that they had been
forced to participate in Satanic
rituals, including animal
sacrifices, in secret tunnels
beneath the school. Some also
spoke of being taken through
the tunnels to be molested at
other locations off school grounds.

Now, despite the denials of Charles Buckey, husband and
father of two of the McMartin defendants, it has been
revealed that the secret tunnels did in fact exist. The
existence of the tunnels, exposed by private investigator and
28-year FBI veteran Ted Gunderson, may have led to the
conviction of defendant Raymond Buckey. However, the
Los Angeles District Attorney failed to introduce this new
evidence.

Suspicion should have been aroused when two of the
McMartin parents independently told the D.A. that they had
observed Charles Buckey and others mixing and pouring
cement outside the school. Furthermore, the parents had

the seven defendants, and charges were
dropped. As a consequence, only Peggy
McMartin Buckey and her son Raymond
Buckey were turned over for trial. The trial
did not formally begin until mid-1987 and
then, finally, came to a close on November 2,
1989—the longest criminal hearing in U.S.
history. After 21, months of jury delibera-
tions, the jury reached a verdict on January
18, 1990 and acquitted Mrs. Buckey on all
counts. However, the jury deadlocked on 13
counts involving Raymond Buckey, and the
judge declared a mistrial on the Raymond
Buckey case. At this point, Reiner announced
Buckey would be retried on eight counts.

Political Controversy

On May 7, Buckey's second trial began.
Within a week, a political controversy arose
when it was revealed Reiner had offered a
tentative plea bargain for Buckey, although

Reiner initially denied a deal had been
offered. Reiner, a candidate for California
state attorney general, was defeated in the
June 5 primary, in part because of the
controversy over the Buckey case. It was
during this period that private investigator
Ted Gunderson and archeologist Dr. Gary
Stickel, uncovered proof the secret tunnels,
described by the victimized children, did
indeed exist. However, as noted in the
accompanying story, the district attorney’s
office refused to use the evidence during the
Buckey trial—much to the disgust and dismay
of the parents of the children. By July 9,
1990 the case was ready for presentation to
the jury, and after 15 stormy days of deliber-
ations, including a re-vote on two of the
counts, the jurors reached a deadlock. On
July 27 the jurors announced they were
deadlocked on all eight counts. At this point

the judge declared a mistrial, and Buckey
was free. According to private investigator
Ted Gunderson, if the evidence relating to
the secret tunnels underneath the school had
been introduced at the Buckey trial, the
verdict might have been different.®

This artifact, bearing three
pentagrams (Satanic symbols),
was found buried in the play yard
of the McMartin Preschool

From: The Spotlight, June 1, 1992
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discovered new cement in a side lot alongside the school
building, although the school had been closed for nearly six
years since the scandal first broke.

Celebrity molesters?

Working with Gunderson, the parents obtained
permission from the new owners to excavate the area
beneath the cement, beginning in April of 1990. According
to Gunderson, “We found a 35-foot tunnel. We found a
seven-foot tunnel. We found the bones of over 200 animals
in these tunnels.” Gary Stickel, a professor of archaeology
at UCLA and an associate of
Gunderson, adds that, “The tunnels
were exactly where the children said
they were. In fact...one of the
children took one of my assistants
around to show where she had
entered the tunnel, and where it ran
beneath two rooms, classrooms three
and four, and that’s exactly where
the tunnels turned out to be.”

If such evidence has been ignored
or covered-up, it may be because, as
Gunderson believes, “Among the
people [the children say molested
them outside the school grounds]
were household names: actors,
sports figures, politicians.” One
child, in fact, identified one of the
city attorneys as well as action film
star Chuck Norris as two of their
molesters (though no-substantiation
of the charges ever emerged.) Given
the recent allegations made against
pop star Michael Jackson, is this
really as impossible as it first
sounds?

D.C. call-boys

Allegations made by conspiracy researcher Antony Sutton
in his Phoenix Letter newsletter, and also investigated by
Ted Gunderson, make the McMartin allegations seem rather
modest. Sutton has written about a Satanic ritual abuse
scandal involving powerful Nebraska elites, a scandal that
stretched all the way to the Bush White House.

The mainstream American media has only reported a
small part of the scandal (though international media have
been more forthcoming.) The part that was reported was the
convenient suicide of Craig Spence, who ran a Washington,
D.C. “call-boy” prostitution ring that reportedly catered to
White House staffers and other D.C. insiders. The
Washington Times reported that call-boys “took midnight
tours of the White House,” but this is as far as the official
story went.

Spence’s Washington partner was Larry King, Jr. (no
relation to the talk show host,) a powerful Nebraska
Republican and George Bush acquaintance, who attended
both the 1984 and 1988 Republican National Conventions.

Sinister signals or overactive imaginations?

Certain hand gestures, like this sign for "I Love
You" made by Bill Clinton, are thought by some
to be Satanic signals

Sutton claims that King was widely known for his pedophilic
practices, and organized lavish parties involving pedophiles,
drugs, and Satanic practices. According to Sutton,
prominent Nebraska corporate and political figures
participated in these parties. Children abused at King parties
were drawn from Father Flanagans Boys Club and North
Omaha Girls Club, the latter founded by King.

Investigator killed

The Nebraska legislature had first begun a probe of
King’s shady financial dealings (they found almost $40
million unaccounted for at the
King-managed Franklin Credit Union.)
After the initial session, Nebraska state
Senator Chambers extended the probe to
include charges of physical and sexual
abuse of children. On December 19,
1988, Dennis Carlson and others from the
Nebraska Foster Care Review Board
stunned Chambers’ Franklin Committee
with the statement that, “The nature of
these allegations are something that is
going to shock the Committee. They deal
with cult activities, they deal with
sacrifices of small children, they deal with
sexual abuse.” Foster Care Review Board
personnel went on to detail these fantastic
charges based on information in FCRB
files. According to Sutton, “Larry King
was charged as the ‘organizer’ of an
extensive child abuse-pedophilic
prostitution ring extending into the highest
political circles.”
Ominously, while State officials
stone-walled the Committee, Comittee
investigator Gary Caradori was killed
when his private plane exploded in mid
air on a flight to Chicago. Soon, Committee members had
resigned, and the Nebraska Legislature refused to continue
its existence. Meanwhile, King was indicted on financial
charges only and sent to a Federal psychiatric facility in
Springfield, Missouri, and then on to jail. Amazingly, the
child abuse victims who refused to recant their testimony
were accused of perjury and also sent to jail.

60 left shoes

Like most conspiracy theories, those involving Satanic
crime and ritualized child abuse incorporate more facts than
skeptics would admit. On the other hand, speculations often
extend beyond what even open-minded observers are willing
to accept. In the end, we are left with facts like the
following, and whatever speculation we care to make:

In 1985, Lucas County Ohio Sheriff James Telb made
headlines when he speculated that some eighty victims had
been sacrificed by a local Satanic cult in a wooded area near
Toledo. A two-day dig uncovered no bodies, but several
disturbing items including: a headless doll with nails driven
through its feet, a nine-foot wooden cross with ligatures

continued page 39
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Watergate continued from page 25

Another one that | think shook down the Federal Aviation
Administration [FAA] and the Nixon administration for a large amount
of money was William F. Buckley Jr. Buckley had not only served in
Mexico City under E. Howard Hunt in the CIA (years before), but since
Hunt was a convicted felon (as a consequence of the Watergate affair),
Hunt could not be the executor of his wife's estate. Buckley, as the
godfather of Hunt’s children, brought a lawsuit in the federal courts in
Chicago against the FAA and in cryptic language said that the FAA
allowed this crash to happen. The lawsuit didn’t quite allege sabotage
but in a way referred to what we had uncovered, and [they] were
using it for their own financial gain. In other words, they strong-armed
the FAA and the Nixon White House to get money out of them. The
press didn’t cover the fact that Buckley had brought such a lawsuit.

Now in the NTSB reports that we had uncovered, we reviewed the
toxicological reports. These reports showed that Dorothy Hunt and the
other Watergate people on board the flight had a very high cyanide
level in their body—higher than they could have breathed into their
body in a fire. In other words, it had to have been injected. We went
to the leading toxicologist in the country, and he said that the cyanide
had to have been injected. In any case, after two days of hearings, |
told a joke that was used against me. | said, “I am here to admit that |
have absolutely no proof whatever that Richard Nixon himself or
Edward Carlson, the chairman of United Airlines, was on the plane with
a .38 and shot Dorothy Hunt.” Do you know that the Chicago paper
had a banner headline saying that “Skolnick admits no proof
whatsoever.” They left out the part of the sentence that was a joke.

Now there was a very interesting man on that plane who survived
the crash. He was sitting right near the tail near the door. His name
was Harold Metcalfe, one of the top narcotics agents in the United
States working directly for the Nixon White House. When the plane
crashed, he opened the door and got off at the tail. He was in a
jumpsuit like he was going to parachute or something. What happened
was that he was supposed to testify before a grand jury in Indiana. An
associate of mine found him and confronted him and said, “You
survived the crash and came out of a plane in a strange jumpsuit. You
knew that plane was supposed to crash.” Metcalfe turned purple and
started blurting out, “It wasn't supposed to happen that way.”

We brought that up at the special hearing. Finally, after two days
of hearings a reporter for the Hearst newspapers came up to me, and
I'll never forget what he said. He said, “All of your documents are
worthless. You didn’t prove that the plane was blown up with a
bomb.” | said, “We're living in a modern world. Of those planes that
have been sabotaged, not all have been blown up that way.” He said,
“Without a bomb, you have no case.” That was the opinion of the top
reporter of the Hearst newspapers. | confronted the members of the
NTSB panel with conflict of interest charges in that most of them
were stockholders in the airline industry, but they refused to disqualify
themselves.

The panel came out with a revised verdict that the prophetically
named Capt. Whitehouse (on the ill-fated plane) had committed pilot
error, and that’s why the plane crashed. In so doing they came out
with a new set of documents. But | had their file, and | was able to
show that their new documents were falsified and not the original
records of what had happened. Whitehouse had been one of the best
pilots in North America and had been a stunt pilot. If there was any-
body under heaven who could have landed that plane, he could have.

The plane’s electrical system had been sahotaged, too. But to
protect United Airlines, they covered up what really happened. My book
on the affair [which Tom Valentine was scheduled to co-author—Ed]
was supposed to be published by Pinnacle Press, but the lawyer for
Chase Manhattan Bank (which, as we said, owns part of United
Airlines) said that the book was “not documented,” even though we
had all of the documents from the NTSB.

After that my magazine Newsreal was going to publish your
story, but our distributor, Fawcett, was purchased by CBS, and
that was the end of that.

There have been a lot of mysterious plane crashes over the years.
One of them was the disappearance of the plane (in Alaska) carrying
Rep. Hale Boggs (D-La.), just a month before Nixon was re-elected. |
talked to a lot of people who investigated it, and there is reason to
believe the plane was found. Boggs had begun making statements that
FBI Director J. Edgar Hoover was wiretapping members of Congress.
Boggs had also been a member of the Warren Commission that said
Lee Harvey Oswald was the lone gunman in the JFK assassination.
Now his daughter, Cokie Roberts, who is a top reporter for ABC,
recently said that she agreed with her father that “Oswald acted
alone.” The fact is that her father had begun to have misgivings in
1972 ahout the Warren Commission, and it was at that point his
airplane disappeared.®

Farew

Jacqueline Bowier Kenedy Onasis
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«id>



NEATPAGEINFO:id=11DB1B15-3C49-432D-9205-AD4D981C3A3B


Yetl continued from page 5

parachuted hack into Tibet (Avedon, 1984). What was Peissel’s
connection to the CIA? It's difficult to say.

Peissel was apparently able to obtain much "Tibet file” (as he
called it) information from American and British intelligence contacts.
He even reveals names that sound familiar-such as "Nyma Tsering,”
said to be one of the most trusted officers among the Tibetan
guerrillas. Tibetan names in English are merely rough transliterations,
often in different spellings. So we are not surprised to find the Sherpa
“Nima Tenzing” on Slick’s 1957 and 1958 expeditions, and the same
individual “Nima Tshering” on Hillary’s 1960 expedition. Was this
person also the aforementioned “Nyma Tsering?” Were Peissel’s
connections woven into the espionage network?

This is the same Michael Peissel who wrote a yeti-debunking article
for Argosy magazine in 1960 entitled "The Abominable Snow Job.”
Peissel mentioned that the subject of his 1966 book, Boris
Lissanevitch, had been given a tranquilizer gun by the Tom Slick
expedition. Peissel half jokingly wrote that "The Indians thought Boris
a Russian agent, the Russians

the story suppressed. As a final resort, soldiers guarding the most
sensitive areas of the base—as well as the Tibetans themselves—were
given explicit instructions to shoot to kill anyone found within the
perimeters” (Avedon,1984).

Names of men involved in the training at Camp Hale are difficult to
locate, but it is interesting to note the connection of the one person |
was able to identify, to other parts of our examination. McCoy,
writing in 1972 on the secret war in Laos, discussed only a handful of
highly committed CIA men there. One was Anthony Poe. Agent Poe,
before his Laos work, recruited Khamba tribesmen in northeastern
India, escorted them to Camp Hale in Colorado for training, and
accompanied them into Tibet on long-range sabotage missions.” And
which hardworking CIA agent had Poe replaced in Laos? William
Young, that’s who, the gentleman we met earlier because of his
probable link to lvan Sanderson and the Burmese Tok stories. (McCoy,
1972).

While Air America, Air Asia, and even a special Nepalese airline
were all involved in the transport of the Tibetans to Camp Hale, was
Slick Airways part of the picture? Henry Belk (1989) told me that he

thought him an American
agent, and the Americans, a
Russian agent” (Peissel, 1966).
It is interesting that Peissel
would show up in the Tibetan
area to investigate the
abominable snowman, during
the critical time of the Dalai
Lama'’s escape. Slowly, over
the years, he revealed his
deeper covert operations links.

Adrian Cowell, for his part, turned up in Burma in the mid-1960s
filming guerrilla opium armies (McCoy, 1972) and recently has been
involved in Brazilian projects. But Cowell’s official biography in
Contemporary Authors neglected to mention his Tibetan adventures
with Patterson.

Something strange is going on here.

“Atomic Testing” In Colorado Anyone?

In 1959, after the Dalai Lama had been helped out of Tibet by the
CIA, this same agency started sending Tibetans to America for covert
instructions. The secret CIA training site for the Tibetans was Camp
Hale, near Leadville, Colorado. (Coincidentally, Tom Slick’s mother's
family was from Leadville.) The Tibetans were silently flown out of
Asia, had only one refueling stopover in Hawaii and, upon their arrival,
did not even realize they were in the United States. The intrigue
surrounding this covert army is worthy of study by researchers who
are looking for the techniques used in governmental coverups. Indeed.
on July 16, 1959 (Prades,1986) the CIA had

planted a front page story in the Denver Post reporting that atomic
testing—though not bomb detonation—was to be conducted at Camp Hale.
The vast area of 14,000-foot peaks and valleys covered by the camp was
henceforth strictly off bounds to the civilian population. People who were
near Peterson Air Force Base, outside of Colorado Springs, when a
subsequent group of Tibetans was flown out, found themselves detained.
Up to forty-seven at a time were held at gun point behind army
roadblocks until mysterious buses, their windows painted black, had
passed by. When news of unidentified Orientals in Colorado reached the
New York Times, Secretary of Defense Robert McNamara personally had

A few English and Italian press
accounts exist confirming that
one objective of the [Hillary yeti
expedition] was to spy on the
Chinese in Tibet

believes Slick Airways was
responsible for taking agents to war
theaters in Southeast Asia. Were
Slick Airways” activities part of the
deleted Tibetan material never
released by the CIA?

Disinformation Chief
Involved?

And what role might have Desmond
FitzGerald played in all of this? A
veteran of conflicts in Burma, FitzGerald was very much the Asian
expert in the CIA. Assistant to the head of the Far Eastern Division of
the CIA’s “Directorate for Plans” in 1952, FitzGerald was described as
“bright, affluent, cultured, charming, and an avid bird watcher” who
“undertook the deadly business of covert operations with a light-
hearted, romantic activism...during the 1950s” (Leary, 1984). We now
know that by the early 1960s, FitzGerald was named head of the
Special Affairs staff and was responsible for at least one
disinformation incident against the Chinese using UFO reports (Good,
1988). Shortly after that, on November 22, 1963, FitzGerald, posing
as a senior United States senator in Europe, handed Rolando Cubela a
weapon disguised as a fountain pen for use in an assassination
attempt against Fidel Castro (Summers, 1980). Deadly serious about
his work, FitzGerald was a member of the CIA’s so-called “Knights
Templar,” a group of original CIA officers and followers of Wild Bill
Donovan. They seemed to have envisioned themselves like the ancient
Catholic military order founded during the Crusades as a “mysterious
and tightly knit group dedicated to a sacred cause” (Hougan, 1984.)
FitzGerald was very involved in the Tibet situation:
Despite the refusal [of President Eisenhower and the United States
government] to associate with the Tibetans openly, secret plans continued.
Before his NSC [National Security Council] meeting of February 4, 1960,
the President met with a group including [former Psychological Strategy
Board Staff Director and at that time special assistant to the President
for national security affairs] Gordon Gray, [(Secretary of State] Christian

Herter, [CIA Director] Allen Dulles, [CIA Deputy Director Charles] Cabell,
and Desmond FitzGerald to discuss Tibet (Prados, 1986).
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What kinds of disinformation was FitzGerald creating for the Tibetan
operations? Did any of it refer to the yeti expeditions searching the
border of Tibet for traces of the creatures?

Yeti Expeditions: Spy Missions? Truth Stranger
than Fiction?

Late in 1960, Sir Edmund Hillary, sponsored by the World Book
encyclopedia company of Chicago, left on his famous expedition to
Nepal in pursuit of the “Abominable Snowman.” While Tom Slick’s
1957-1959 expeditions may have been rumored to be espionage
missions, what part did spying play in Hillary’s trek? Driven by
publicity and the media, most accounts of the yeti debunking affair
mention only the high altitude medical testing as a subgoal of the
fiasco. A few English and Italian press accounts exist confirming that
one objective of the group was to spy on the Chinese in Tibet. Two
rocket experts, Tom Nevison of the United States Air Force and Peter
Mulgrew of the Royal New Zealand Navy, were closely watching and
gathering data on the Chinese firing missiles from Tibet. Journalist
Desmond Doig, Nevison and Mulgrew were camped together at Tolum
Bau glacier when they all witnessed just such a launching. Meanwhile,
the Chinese were jamming the camp’s radio (Coleman,1989;
Sanderson,1961; Doig,1960). All of the official chronicles of the
Hillary-World Book expedition not too surprisingly fail to detail this
aspect of the party’s activities.

Strangely, in 1970 and 1971, two fictional accounts surfaced
linking espionage activities with the abominable snowmen. The 1970
Billy Wilder movie, The Private Life of Sherlock Holmes is a story
including large components of covert activities and the Loch Ness
Monster. Interestingly, it also contains a segment set in the exclusive
Diogenes Club where Holmes comments on the members’ uncanny
ability to turn up “here, there and everywhere.” Then he later adds,
“When there’s trouble along the Indian frontier, some of your fellow
members pop up in the Himalayas allegedly looking for the Abominable
Snowman” (Haddon, 1987). The Private Life of Sherlock Holmes is
not in distribution and difficult to locate today, aside from occasional
television appearances.

Ronald Rosenblatt (1989) has informed me of another presently
rare fictional work that connects intelligence agents and a search for
a Tibetan mystery animal. In 1971, Jack Benton Scott’s Sparge: A
Novel of Espionage was published. The book details the activities of
a renegade CIA agent who goes on a mission to Tibet and India, using
a search for the so-called “Sun Bear,” a supposedly extinct animal, as
his cover.

Is truth stranger than fiction? During the hottest days of the secret
war in Tibet in 1959 and 1960, eleven separate expeditions, including
one led by the Chinese, were sent to the area on the track of the
abominable snowmen of the Himalayas (Coleman, 1989; Sanderson,
1961; Dong, 1984). Were all of these merely cryptozoological
investigations, or was something more covert taking place? Has the
yeti been a cover story for spy missions? Until some future Freedom
of Information request produces a document or an expedition member
talks openly, thus giving us some hard evidence, for now we are left
with only a few linkages and some intellectual possibilities. Still,
something seems to be afoot!

Coverup vs. Cover?
For the last few years, a great debate has raged in ufology
regarding the role of the CIA and other similar organizations in the

UFO field. For example, Timothy Good's Above Top Secret, a 1988
book, has already taken on near classic status. Its stance, taken in the
first paragraph, can be summarized as indicating that a “wide-scale
coverup” of the involvement of the intelligence community in the study
of UFOs is occurring. Good and others feel the government is hiding
proof of the existence of UFOs.

In our cryptozoology-espionage examination, however, the reasons
behind the alleged cover-ups seem to have more to do with hiding
covers than burying evidence and special knowledge of the reality of
ihe arcane subjects which occupy our interests. Over and over again,
as .2 delved deeper into the subject of the Tibetan yeti expeditions
and the Himalayan spy missions, the characters involved revealed a
pattern of covert psychological warfare operations in their back-
grounds. While in North Africa, Carleton Coon, for example, invented a
mine disguised as donkey dung in order to kill Nazis. Meanwhile, in
Algiers, Peter Tompkins was a member of the Psychological Warfare
Branch of General Eisenhower’s headquarters, conducting all manner of
propaganda and divect actions, and possibly assassinations.

Desmond FitzGeraid used false UFO sightings, and perhaps yeti
ones also, to disrupt the Chinese. In a meeting to discuss secret
activities in Tibet, FitzGerald discussed plans with Gordon Gray, among
others. And if we are to believe the truth behind the claims of ufo-
logists, Gray was a member of the ultrasecret MJ-12 group, desig-
nated to deal with UFQOs. But Gordon Gray's connections and history
are amazing even without this as yet unproven linkage, for Gray was
the first staff Director of the Psychological Strategy Board.

And the background to the Psychological Strategy Board is
illuminating. In February 1949, President Truman created a State
Department psychological warfare office. In March 1950 Truman
adopted special order NSC-59 for more foreign information gathering
and psychological warfare, and then NSC-74 for “A Plan for National
Psychological Warfare.” The President then moved quickly to get Rear
Admiral Sidney W. Souers for consultations. Souers supported a
recommendation to create an interagency group for nonmilitary cold
war activities, and
Truman responded
by setting up the
Psychological ; ; %
Strategy Board .
(PSB) under the

National
Security Council
in Spring, 1951.
Gordon Gray
was picked as
first staff
Director of
PSB. Gray
knew Frank
Wisner,
Directorate
of Plans,
and CIA
deputy
director
William

Bigfoot: Coverup or
covert op?
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H. Jackson and the PSB assistant Gray hired Tracy Barnes, because
they all worked for the same Wall Street law firm, Carter, Ledyard
and Milburn, before WW II. At the time, the Director of Central
Intelligence was Walter Bedell Smith; Gray was asked to head PSB by
W. B. Smith and William Jackson. Earlier Gray had been involved in
the whole setup of the Army staff's adoption of “psywar,” i.e.
psychological warfare, in January 1948. Although the prime mover in
that area was General Robert McClure, Gray as Assistant Secretary of
the Army encouraged the effort. The Army’s interest in “psywar”
eventually evolved into the Army’s “Special Forces.” PSB disbanded in
1954 for political reasons, and Gray was exiled to the review board
that sat in judgment of nuclear physicist J. Robert Oppenheimer. But
Gray would be back. He served in the intelligence community for forty
years (Prados, 1986). Those aware of the supposed MJ-12 affair
realize that Gray, Smith and Souers are noted as 1952 members. The
overlap between PSB and MJ-12 seems more than a coincidence in
time, in membership, and in motives. But perhaps the key is
psychological warfare, not physical facts.

What if the whole thrust of the intelligence community’s interest in
cryptozoology, ufology, and fortean subjects in general has more to do
with covers and fronts than with a cover-up of data? Diplomatic,
ornithological, and

In the end, we may discover that the covers are the secret, and
not some disinformation coverups of alien bodies in Ohio’s Wright-
Patterson Air Force base or of yeti corpses at San Antonio’s
Southwest Research Institute.®
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He was like a man who was
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so he was looking over the horizon to a new
world, a free and happy world. He stood there on

the edge of the universe looking into the future, and when

he turned around to say, Come on, let's go, they pulled the ladder
out from under him and killed him.

Peter Reich writing about
his father, Wilhelm Reich,
in A Book of Dreams (now out-of-print)

For more on Wilhelm Reich and secret science, see page 20.
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(composite photo)

Excerpted from Passport to Magonia,
Jacques Vallee, 1969, 1993

he mass abduction of an en-

tire British Regiment by a

huge “cloud” UFO allegedly

occurred on- August 28, 1915
in Gallipoli during World War 1. Here is
the original account:

The following is an account of a strange
incident that happened...in the morning, during
the severest and final days of the fighting,
which took place at “Hill 60,” Suvla Bay,
[Africa] ANZAC (Australian and New Zealand
Army Corp). The day broke clear without a
cloud in sight as any beautiful Mediterranean
day...the exception, however, was a number
of perhaps six or eight “loaf of bread”-shaped
clouds—all shaped exactly alike—which were
hovering over “Hill 60.” It was noticed that,
in spite of a four or five mile an hour breeze
from the south, these clouds did not alter
their position in any shape or form, nor did
they drift away under the influence of the
breeze. They were hovering at an elevation of
about 60 degrees as seen from our observa-
tion point 500 feet up. Also stationary and
resting on the ground right underneath this
group of clouds was a similar cloud in shape
measuring about 800 feet in length, 200 feet
in height and 200 feet in width. This cloud
was absolutely dense, almost solid looking in
structure, and positioned about fourteen to
eighteen chains from the fighting in British
held territory.

All this was observed by twenty-two men

of No. 3 Section of No. 1 Field Company,
N.Z.E. from our trenches...approximately 2500
yards southwest of the cloud on the ground...
overlooking “Hill 60" by about 300 feet..we
had a perfect view of the cloud's sides and
ends as it rested on the ground. It's color
was a light grey as was the color of the
other clouds. A British Regiment, the First
Fourth Norfolk, of several hundred men, was
then noticed marching up this sunken road or
creek towards “Hill 60.” It appeared as
though they were going to reinforce the
troops at Hill 60. However, when they arrived
at this cloud, they marched straight into it,
with no hesitation, but no one ever came out
to deploy and fight at “Hill 60.” About an
hour later, after the last of the file had
disappeared into it, this cloud very unobtru-
sively lifted off the ground and, like any fog
or cloud, rose slowly until it joined the other
clouds...[which] all looked alike, as peas in a
pod. All this time, the group of clouds had
been hovering in the same place, but as soon
as the singular “ground” cloud had risen to
their level, they all moved away northward,
toward Thrace (Bulgaria). In a matter of
about three quarters of an hour, they had all
disappeared from view.

The Regiment mentioned is posted as
“missing "or “wiped out” and, upon Turkey
surrendering in 1918, the first thing Britain
demanded was the return of this Regiment.
Turkey replied that she had neither captured
this Regiment, nor made contact with it, and
did not know that it existed. (A British
Regiment in 1914-18 consisted of any
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number between 800 and 4000 men.) Those
who observed this incident vouch for the fact
that Turkey never captured that Regiment nor
made contact with it.

We, the undersigned, although late in time,
on the fiftieth Jubilee of the ANZAC landing
[1965], declare that the above-described
incident is true in every word.

Signed by witnesses:

4/165 Sapper F. Reichart, Matata,
Bay of Plenty

13/416 Sapper R. Newnes, 157
King Street, Cambridge

J.L. Newman, 73 Freyberg Street,
Otumoctai, Tauranga®

Ruling Class/Conspirvacy
Redearch NResource Center

LIWH and Covert Organs of the Vatican and Neo-British
Empires are Locked in Mortal Combat for Control of the World"
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THANATONM I
THANATOM
OIL, ACRYLIC, INK AND LETTERING ON CANVAS (1989)
73Y% X 73% IN.
(ILLUSTRATED IN PROGRESS)
SUBJECT: A VISITATION BY A FLYING SAUCER AND ALIEN.

SYMBOL EVOCATION: THE TORTOISE AS THE EARTH-MOTHER, THE SUPPORT OF THE WORLD.
COMMENTS: THE PAINTING DEPICTS AN EXTRATERRESTRIAL'S EXHORTATION TO ME, EXPLAINING HOW TO:
e LINK LIFE TO DEATH IN A CONTINUOUS EXPERIENCE.

e UTILIZE THE RESULTING THANATONIC ENERGY TO TRAVEL FASTER THAN THE SPEED OF LIGHT, TURN MATTER INTO CONSCIOUSNESS
AND BACK AGAIN, ALTER EVOLUTION AT WILL, AND EXIST SIMULTANEOUSLY AT EVERY MOMENT OF TIME.

e MOVE THE ENTIRE UNIVERSE INTO THE FIFTH DIMENSIONAL REALM, AND SAY WHEN IN HISTORY IT IS POSSIBLE FOR THIS TO HAPPEN.
| HAVE ALSO RECEIVED OTHER INFORMATION | CANNOT UNDERSTAND. SINCE THIS INFORMATION WAS GIVEN TO ME DIRECTLY BUT
NOT FOR ME PER SE, IT MUST BE COMMUNICATED TO OTHERS, MANY OF WHOM ARE BETTER PREPARED THAN | TO RECEIVE IT.

ACCORDINGLY, | WAS ALSO SHOWN HOW TO MAKE THE PAINTING INTO A PSYCHOTRONIC, OR MIND-MATTER INTERACTIVE, DEVICE WHICH

IS ACTIVATED BY APPROACHING THE PAINTING, STRETCHING OUT YOUR ARMS, TOUCHING THE UPRIGHT HANDS, AND STARING INTO THE
EYE. BY DOING THIS, NEW INFORMATION WILL COME TO YOU THROUGH THE ACTIVE USE OF THE DIVINE PROPORTION, WHICH IS THE
PROPORTION OF LIFE CONNECTING TO DEATH.

<oy»
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aul Laffoley (pronounced Laff-o-lee) is the

kind of artist whose work defies categori-

zation. He has designed an architecturally

“alive” dwelling for Nelson Mandela. He
has related the geometrical properties of the
great pyramid at Gizah to the design of the UFO
in the 1951 sci-fi hit The Day the Earth Stood
Still. He is presently working on a series of Elvis
portraits for Country Music magazine.

In addition to his own book, entitled The
Phenomenology of Revelation, (available by
mail from Newspeak, see book list on p. 40.)
Paul has been published in such diverse works as
the Journal of the United States Psycho-
tronic Association, and Gods of Aquarius:
UFO's and the Transformation of Man, by
Brad Steiger. He is to be previewed in a new ;
book called Kooks, by Donna Kossy, which will N i ——5& «hw‘
be published in June 1994 by Feral House Press ; WAL
(see p. 45.) Paul can be reached at the Boston

@
Visionary Cell, 36 Bromfield St., Suite 200,
Boston, MA, 02108.
s, 1 Sl

Paul is talking about his painting
“Marquette for a Thought Form,” which was
part of his winter 94 show entitled “Art and
Lucid Dreaming” at the Federal Reserve Bank
Building in Boston.

Lucid dreaming is the ability to become
aware, during a dream, that you are dreaming
and to do two things: one, take control of the
dream, and two, take back a message.

In 1903, D. W. Ledbetter put forth the idea
that you could see thought forms in people’s
auras. The word “thought” didn't really mean
they were seeing sets of words, like cartoon
balloons, it was simply that those were forms
that had emotional translation. My piece,
“Marquette for a Thought Form” contains one
star, which is tantric in terms of sexual
penetration. You could see other shapes and
colorations. You'd wonder what this outflow
was, maybe it was a light brilliance? It looked
like something you'd bring to the beach.

In lucid dreaming you are creating a condition
where you can turn up the heat or cold to
whatever degree you want and it will actually be
connected to the object you are dreaming about.
You also have to train yourself so that you can
go into lucid dreaming without any interface
between a normal blackout and waking up into a
regular dream, which is dealing with the past.
When you dream, you are dealing with the
subconscious past and you have a lot of
baggage, which tends to negate any kind of
energy or control which you have over this
process.

Interviewed by Mark Westion

When you go directly from the waking state to
the lucid dream state you overcome the subcon-
scious so that you are not using archetypes, or any
of the baggage that psychology has lain on us. This
is like using the energy directly as you would during
the waking state, only you have access to systems
and instrumentality that is limitless. It's only limited
by what we can think of in the same way that our
existence as humans has only been limited by what
we can think of. It's totally dependent on our own
creativity.

| want to use lucid dreaming in a methodical
way, almost a scientific way. People use it to
decode astral projection; to go on journeys. | think
it has much more interesting consequences if seen
as an instrument, and it thus produces a whole new
genre of inventions which go beyond the traditional
notion of psychotronics, which are defined as mind-
matter interactive devices. But how consciousness
and mass become continuous was never explained;
it has just been assumed that there isn't any inter-
face situation. There is no use of different aspects
of this along the spectrum; its either on or off.

But if we find that the process is literally true
that mass and consciousness are continuous, then
you can tap it at different points and achieve
different results. So here is where you have con-
sciousness and mass, with lucid dreaming seen as
the mid-point. So it has the ability of consciousness
to use the will, but also makes consciousness have
mechanical aspects as well. You have invariants.
You can engineer your next step and achieve a
particular result.

The Klein Bottle...

The Klein bottle is extremely tectonic. Many
people, including myself, consider that the shape of
the physical universe in terms of its boundedness
has got to be much like the klein bottle, in which
one form will penetrate the other without rupturing
either surface. You're dealing with a higher
situation, you're given a clue as to how to connect
the physical to the metaphysical.

You can take two mobius strips, a right and left
handed, and converge to make a Klein bottle. Then
you can take a left and right sided Klein bottle and
make a hyper-Klein bottle. It becomes another form
we don’t have nomenclature for yet...but it's a way
of recognizing that while there is a finitude to each
dimension, there is also a way out; there is a
connection to another dimension.

Photos: Paul explains an image detail (top);
While speaking to an audience, Paul is
visited by an amoeba-like, otherworldly
entity (middle); “Looks like something
you’d bring to the beach” Paul and his
work, Marquette for a Thought Form
(bottom); Thanaton III (opposite page)
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The Soliton Wave...

It is postulated that soliton waves are responsible for the slight
voltage in our bodies’ electrical system. It has got to be the soliton
waves that are actually the pulses that are going through our bodies.
There are millions of miles of dendrils that this electricity has to go
through in order to complete the natural contraction of muscle tissue.

And Perpetual Mction...

In that sense, when you look at life it seems like perpetual motion.
Look at the gyroscopic metions of the atoms—these are also types of
perpetual motion. A perpetual motion device has to have some dis-
creteness, some disconnectedness from ourselves, and the ability to
use a source of energy. A perpetual
motion machine as a device that does
not use energy simply can not be, like
the overbalanced wheel. Thomas Cox, in
1728, invented a perpetual motion clock
based on changes in barometric
pressure and the thing is still in
operation. So there’s perpetual motion...
the moon is perpetually going around
the Earth—if you have a source of
energy and an environment that does
not alter, and you can utilize it, then
you've got perpetual motion.

Mix Phenomena Well...

So, what I'm planning here is that
through the use of two interlocking
mobius strips connected with mercury
in evacuated tubes, combined with the
use of lucid dreaming, | can-generate a
soliton wave. One of the things | found out about lucid dreaming is
that we can process information which, of course, equals energy. You
can see why we can learn new things, why there is an advancement
in knowledge from one moment to another is the fact that we then
process energy as information. Pure Einstein! So, therefore, in the
same way that in the waking state you can introduce energy into a
situation, you can do this in lucid dreaming. You would have to have a
hermetically sealed system-—sealed by Hermes-sealed by Revelation, so
that you cannot get in or out except in a certain way.

Different Geometries...

The mobius strip and klein bottle are considered unusual forms in
having no application. The forms of, say, dynamic geometry always
conform to simple things like platonic solids or spheres. These imply
inertia in their structure. They imply an interaction with mass, where
mass predominates, where the sense of invariance predominates,
whereas the mobius strip and the klein bottle do not. Flying saucers
make right angle turns, but they’re really making mobius strip turns
which look like right angles when you lock at only one part of it.

We've always been able to understand the lucid dream state; we've
just never been able to use it. My claim is that lucid dreaming once
utilized, won't merely be the next LSD trip, because you can slow it
down to any speed of knowledge acquisition that you want. The
reason why LSD didn’t work is that its velocity was normally greater
than the absorption power of the average mind. You are absorbing
information, but you cannot use it. It's like twirling your head around...
you're seeing all this stuff, but how can you use it? In the lucid dream

state, you are able to control the velocity of the information entering
from another dimension. This is extremely useful.

Physically Alive Architecture...
single pollen. This can actually be done in our time. The earth could be
made into a single vegetable, with the ley lines of the earth covered in
above the earth. At 12 miles you are about half way into the
atmosphere. This is where most of the pollutants and airborne
vegetation which has been genetically programmed to withstand
compressive strengths, we can make
alive. We can then connect all the
K E N vegetation together so that we are
h ‘ effect. This would take all the oxygen
B making apparatus and enhance it. We
D »  would immediately be absorbing all the
returning the stuff back to the earth
where it belongs. We should never have
first place. Over the centuries, you
could eventually connect the whole
purely vegetative environment. You
could make your houses out of this.
all connect. | have plans on how to do
this on an individual basis. It's like a
the other systems around it. So the most logical thing is that you
have the entire earth done in this way.
made larger than it's form. In Darcy Thompson's famous book,
Growth and Form, he was the first bio-engineer to state that the
limits.

A mouse is different than an elephant because it starts out
enlarged to the size of an elephant. The mouse would have to change
into an elephant. The interesting thing is that the orchid, of all the
couple of times, probably ten or fifteen times it's size and still have
it's form remain. You could make it so large that you could live in it.
structure are the same thing. Orchids are wombs on the end of a
stick. A flower is the sex organ of a vegetable. That's an amazing

A pollen is already conforming to the ley lines of the earth, a dyna-
mic bio-geometry. We would still have mountains, for instance, they
have different kinds of water rather than the uniform salt or non-salt
water. Instead of a landscape like a renaissance painting, with ground

All vegetation in the world should be grafted together to create a
vegetation. You can grow this vegetable sphere at, say, 12 miles
minerals are. You can actually construct that, and then through

?!\ this sphere around the earth physically
literally creating the good greenhouse
pollutants that we put into the air, and
taken that stuff out of the earth in the
thing. What would remain would be a
There would be places where it would

little sync of synergy where you make one and you're draining out of
| like orchids. | want to live in an orchid. An orchid can literally be
reason why things are the way they are is because of their structural
programmed in a different way. A mouse form could not simply be
flowers, is over-structured, it's overdesigned. You could enlarge it a
There are a lot of interesting spaces in an orchid. The surface and the
concoction!
would be vegetable mountains rather than earth mountains. We would
plane, verticals and sky, you would find dirt doing other things.®

ol
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men capable of having babies?

and uncategorizable.

$16.95

Feral House
PO Box 3466

Portland, OR 97208
Add $1.75 each copy for shipping

[NOK

A Guide to the Outer Limits of Human Belief
by Donna Kossy

Will drilling a hole in one’s head cause enlightenment? Can a person’s soul be captured in a
lady’s hairnet? Is Hitler alive and well and living in Antarctica? Were dinosaurs created by Satan? Are

Navigating through vast and uncharted realms in the freak show of human belief, author Donna
Kossy’s compulsively readable sourcebook presents zany and unorthodox views in Religion, Science,
Metaphysics, Politics, and Conspiracies. The concluding chapter “Enigmas” contains the inexplicable

“Donna Kossy is one of the very few dignified representatives of the growth science of Crackpotology. To write
entertainingly for ‘non-kooks’ about so-called kooks requires walking a tightrope between tolerant understanding of
outsider psychology and graceful sarcasm ... Kossy is truly a friend to the kooks ... for above all she remembers and

recognizes their humanity.” — Rev. Ivan Stang, author, High Weirdness by Mail.

8% x 11 ® 253 pp. ® 105 illustrations ® full color cover ® perfectbound

KOOKS can be found at most bookstores or can be ordered directly from:

=
INSIDE ISRAEL

Israel’s first investigative news source
supplies information unavailable in the
foreign and Jewish media.

Included in every issue:

* Exposes of domestic political and financial
scandals

* Undisclosed intelligence and security
operations

* Exclusive reports on Israeli foreign affairs

* Unreported social and cultural trends

INSIDE ISRAEL is a monthly newsletter
available by subscription only.
For a free sample copy, write or phone:

1456 Second Av. Suite 142
New York, N.Y. 10021
(212) 642-8289

InIsrael:
POB 489, Beit Shemesh
Telephone: (02) 911685

N

J

iSLAIHS-L

We figure, if it's good enough to read, it's good enough to wear!
For the first time, Paranoia is pleased to offer these high-quality,
white t-shirts emblazoned with the fantastic cover of this very issue,
in classic black and white! [This is the only cover available.] Available
in LARGE and X-TRA LARGE sizes only, it costs just $11, plus $3
shipping and handling! Send your payment and SIZE choice to:

Paranoia, PO Box 3570, Cranston, Rl 02910
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Dont say we di
arn you...

by Al Hidell
lack helicopters and foreign troops have been
reported in various parts of the United States,
according to a new book that arrived as we
were going to press. The book, The United

Nations Concentration Camps Program in America,
by Serge Monast, warns that these troops and helicopters are
part of an effort to trash democracy and the Constitution of the
United States, and establish a New World Order (NWO) under
UN control. In fact, some of these UN forces have already
arrived (see map at right.) Are they simply in training, or is
something more sinister going on? We hope to explore the
issues and questions surrounding the NWO in more depth in
future issues of Paranoia. For now, let this serve as an
introduction. And a warning...

In Monast’s view, the recent expansion of UN military activ-
ities (in Somalia and Yugoslavia, to name just two locales,) and
the concurrent “downsizing” of the US. military are intimately
related: they are part of a decades-old plan to put the New
World Order in action. Unlike many who warn of the NWO,
Monast provides a copy of what appears to be a legitimate US
government document to back up his claims. The document,
United States Arms Control and Disarmament Agency Publica-
tion 14, appears to date from the 1950s and contains a diagram
that shows how the US military, as we’ve come to know it,
will be “downsized” almost to
the point of extinction. Mean-
while, we’ll have to trust a

United States Arms Control &
Disarmament Agency - Publication 14

sa
* -
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¥ =United Natlons Combat Groups Confirmed Locations
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UNITED NATIONS BATTLE GROUPS
ENTRANCE TO UNITED STATES PASSED
UNDER
PRESIDENTIAL EXECUTIVE OADERS SIGNED
11 NOVEMBER 1990

undisputed that certain Presidential Executive Orders (EOs)
already exist that would, in “national emergency,” revoke the
Constitution and replace it with what can only be described as
a military dictatorship. (Because the term “martial law” has
such nasty connotations, government bureaucrats have
apparently employed the friendlier term “martial rule.”)
Quoting a former US Army Intelligence Analyst, Monast
describes how a little-known group called the MJTF (Multi-
Jurisdictional Task Force) might be deployed during a
“national emergency.” The MJTF’s primary mission is
“house-to-house search and seizure” (of weapons) and
“separation and
categori- zation of men,
women, and children”

Please read across

growing UN military force to

U.S. THREE-STAGE

in large numbers to

oLt own DISARMAMENT PLAN transfer to detention

serve as the globe’s super-army.
The super-army will, as
happened in Somalia, contain US
personnel who will have to obey
UN commanders (not the Presi-
dent, as our Constitution
requires.) Technically, the US
will be just one voice of many at
the UN table, and thus the
American people will have
virtually no control of how its

Note Stage | - US. and
USSR Military - Large
U.N. Peacekeeping -
Small

Note Stage Il - US.
and USSR Military
Smaller

U.N. Peacekeeping
Increased

Note Stage Hi - US.
and USSR Military
GONE.

STAGE |

STAGE It

FORCES

INTERNAL INTERNAL
STAGE Il secyRITY SECURITY

PAACHINERY o facilities and the use of
% ) those facilities for
- °T interro- gation
purposes.

According to Monast,
mass detention facil-
ities—also called

FORCES

has all Military.

U.S. and USSR has
only Internal Security
Forces to quiet any
who object.

military is used. And, as a member nation, the United States
may even find itself invaded by UN forces, should conditions
here grow “unstable” in the eyes of the UN bureaucrats.
Equally ominous, as the diagram suggests, is the fact that the
US military will have an interesting new role: “Internal

Security Forces.”

And what kind of “Internal Security” will the New World
Order require? The answer, of course, depends on the degree
to which our rulers feel threatened. If a “national emergency”
occurs (however those in power choose to define this vague
term,) things would simply be nightmarish. In fact, it is

=

concentration camps —have been set up at several US military
installations on the secret orders of ex-President Reagan.
(Could this be the real reason behind the recent so-called “base
closings”?)

Basically, anyone the government deems to be “dangerous”
will be rounded up, just as Japanese-Americans were during
World War II. And who might be rounded up? This is where
the warning of the headline comes in, because Monast reports
that it could be you:

It will be swift and legal. The law is already on the books. (Detainees
will) represent every shade of political and social opinion, from Right to
Left and (include) a big span of middle-of-the-road citizens who have
never committed an offense more heinous than having subscribed to an
unapproved periodical.

So don’t say we didn’t warn you...®

<Gl
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Attack of the Superbugs!

Many of the antibiotics that we take for granted were
developed in the early part of this century. Back in these “good old
days,” sick people stayed close to home, thereby confining illness
to their immediate surroundings. Nowadays, with the help of rapid
transportation, you could find yourself on the far side of the globe
before you even felt the first symptoms of disease. This situation is
responsible for the international blending of germs into mutant
super bacteria which are resistant to everything in our medical
arsenal.

Speaking at this year’s annual meeting of the American
Association for the Advancement of Sciences, Rockefeller
~ University’s Dr. Alexander Tomasz said, “Already some strains of
bacteria have been found to carry resistance to every antibiotic
known to medicine.” In fact, one such super bacteria was found to
be responsible for 58% of the pneumonia contracted in one major
urban hospital. Tomasz went on to warn that many of the diseases
that we now consider curable, such as tuberculosis, pneumonia and
blood poisoning could return as the incurable killers of the next
decade. (St. Louis Post Dispatch, The Observer, Nexus)

“Your card, citizen?”

One of the main features of the Clinton health care agenda is a
“Health Security Card,” which would be issued to all citizens.
Looking like an ordinary bank card, this piece of plastic will contain
all of your medical records. While the government's stated purpose
is to improve the health care system, privacy advocates worry
about this card’s potential for abuse. For unlike a standard credit
card, this one utilizes new technology that allows for volumes of
retrievable records on the card holder. Pushing such cards in the
interest of national “health” has been the preferred method of
introducing national ID cards into countries whose citizens would
normally balk at the idea. Officials at Schipol Airport in Amsterdam
have no such qualms. They have provided a test group with
international ID cards. Promoted as a way to get through customs
more easily, the card holds all the pertinent information on the
holder that the government deems necessary, along with a digitized
map of the owners hand print. As a preview of what the future
may hold, these selected passengers insert their card into an
electronic “palm reading” device while placing their hand over the
device’s scanner. (The Independent, Nexus, Cox News Service,
The Leading Edge)

Urban legend, or...

Have you heard this or a similar story recently? (We have, from
a confidential source.) A man visits Las Vegas on a junket and
disappears on the first night of his stay. His female companion is
forced to go home without him after three days. The Las Vegas
police suggest that he is merely on a “bender,” and that he would
show up when he was ready. A full seven days after returning
home, his lady friend receives a phone call from him. He is in a
hotel room back in Vegas, disoriented and in pain. He tells her that
he has no memory of the preceding ten days. She then calls the
Las Vegas police, who had discovered a gauze bandage taped to his
lower back. Further investigation disclosed a surgical incision under
the gauze. A subsequent hospital visit reveals that the man is
missing a kidney. The police then inform the couple that “This has
been happening a lot lately.” Apparently, the police in Las Vegas
don’t want to scare away business.

What's next, Denver boots?

The bureaucrats at the Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention are at it again. It seems that the latest
figures are in on alcohol-related traffic deaths, and our
public servants are patting themselves on the back
because the number has dropped 10% between 1982
and 1992. But there’s a fly in the ointment that
greases the number crunching machine. While the 10%
reduction represents people behind the wheel, the
number of drunk pedestrians killed by automobiles has
only gone down by 3%. Deeming this situation as
unacceptable, the CDC’s National Center for Injury
Prevention and Control has instituted a study on ways
to adapt present drunk driving regulations to fit the
drunk walking scenario. So watch your step. (AP)

The bill for Bill's bill

What will $200 billion buy these days? How about
a police state? $200 billion is what's being allocated
for Clinton’s crime bill. Big Brother's shopping list reads
as follows: $3 billion for the construction of ten high
security regional prisons. $3 billion for the construction
of military style boot camps and local correctional
centers. (This would free up space in state prisons for
hard-core criminal types.) $500 million for juvenile
rehabilitation centers. Sixty thousand juveniles are
expected to occupy these camps. Other funds will go
towards such goodies as metal detectors for schools
and DNA research. The bill also expands the list of
capital crimes. You can now get the death penalty for
killing a federal officer in the performance of his duty.
This includes chicken inspectors. The government has
also increased the penalty for “hate crimes” by one
third. Hate crime is described as a criminal attack on
person or property on the basis of the victim’s race,
color, religion, national origin, ethnicity, sex or sexual
orientation. In other words, some criminal attacks are
deemed more serious than other—equivalent—acts,
based soley on the attacker's alleged beliefs. (New York Times,
Leading Edge)
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Compiled by
Mark Westion

Working for the clampdown...

The National Guard of Puerto Rico has embarked on an
anticrime campaign which some fear is a dress rehearsal for an
authoritarian clampdown here in the United States. Using the “war
on drugs” as an excuse to forego civil rights, the National Guard
first surrounds a government housing project with a chain link
fence, then conducts a door to door search. Thus far, 24 of the
332 government projects have been occupied by machine gun toting
troops. National Public Radio recently broadcast a report on this
campaign which, while touching on libertarian issues, seemed
mostly to concentrate on praise for the troops by inhabitants of
the projects. It would seem that, as in the U.S., the restrictions on
recreational drug use have made life in the projects a dangerous
affair. So once again the citizenry is anxious to sell rights for
safety. The end result of this police state tactic is that the drug
dealers have quit the projects and moved into the suburbs. (The
Spotlight, Leading Edge, National Public Radio)®
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Dear Dia

arch 16. | recive a small flat one-room
kicten-bath near the factory (8 min. walk)
with splendid view from 2 balconies of
the river, almost rent free (60. rub. a
mon.) it is a Russian dream.

March 17 - April 31— work, | have lost
contact with Rosa after my house moving. | meet
Pavil Golovacha. A yonuge man my age friendly
very intelligent a exalant radio techniction his father
is Gen. Golovacha Commander of Northwestenr
Siberia. Twice hero of USSR in WW. 2

May 1—May Day came as my first holiday all
factories Ect. closed after sptacular millitary parade
all workers parad past reviewing stand waving
flags and picutres of Mr. K. ect. | follow the Amer.
custom of marking a Holiday by sleeping in in the
morning. At night | visit with the Zegers daughters
at an party throw by them about 40 people came
many of Argentine origen we dance and play around
and drink until 2 am. when party breaks up.
Leonara Zeger oldest dau. 26 formally married, now
divorced, a talanted

“patroict duty” to bring in the harvest.
The opions of the workers (unvoiced)
are that its a great pain in the neck. They

don’t seem to be esspicialy enthusiastic about any
of the “collective” duties a natural feeling. | am
increasingly aware of the presence, in all thing, of
Lebizen, shop party secretary, fat, fortyish, and
jovial on the outside. He is a no-nonsense party
regular.

Oct. The coming of Fall, my dread of a new
Russian winter, are mellowed in splendid golds and
reds of fall in Belorussia plums peaches appricots
and cherrys abound for these last fall weeks | am a
healthy brown color and stuffed with fresh fruit (at
other times of the year unobtainable)

Oct. 18 my 21st hirthday see’s Rosa, Pavil, Ella
at a small party at my place Ella a very attractive
Russian Jew | have been going walking with lately,
works at the radio factory also. Rosa and Ella are
jelous of each other it brings a warm feeling to me.
Both are at my place for the first time. Ella and
Pavil both give ash-trays

singer. Anita Zeger 20
very gay, not so
attractive but we hit it
off. Her Boy-friend Alferd
is a Hungarian chap,
silent and brooding, not at
all like Anita. Zeber
advised me to go back to
U.S.A. its the first voice
of opposition | have heard. | respect Zeger, he has
seen the world. He says many things, and relats
many things | do not know about the US.S.R. |
begin to feel uneasy inside, its true!

June-July Summer months of green beauty,
pine forest very deep. | enjoy many Sundays in the
enviorments of Minsk. with the Zegers who have a
car “mos.vick” Alfred always goes along with Anita,
Leonara seems to have no permanet Boy-friend, but
many admirirs. She has a beautiful Spanish figure,
long black hair, like Anita. | never pay much atten.
to her shes too old for me she seems to dislike my
lack of attention for some reason. She is high
strung. | have become habituatated to a small cafe
which is where | dine in the evening the food is
generally poor and always eactly the same, menue
in any cafe, at any point in the city. The food is
cheap and | dont really care about quiality after
three years in the U.S.M.C.

Aug-Sept As my Russian improves | become
increasingly concious of just what sort of a society
| live in. Mass gymnastics, compulsary after work
meeting, usually political information meeting.
Complusary attendance at lectures and the sending
of the entire shop collective (except me) to pick
potatoes on a Sunday, at a State collective farm. A
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The food is cheap and
I dont really care about

quiality after three
years in the U.S.M.C.

(I dont smoke) we have
a laugh.

Nov. Finds the approach
of winter now. A
growing lonliness
overtakes me in spite of
my conquest of
Ennatachina a girl from
Riga, studying at the
music conservorie in Minsk. and-shert After an
affair which last a few weeks we part.

Nov 15 in Nov. | make the acquaintaces of four
girls rooming at the For. lan. domitory in room 212.
Nell is very interesting, so is Tomka, Tomis and
Alla. | usually go to the institute
domatory with a friend of mine
who speaks english very well.
Eraich Titov is in the forth year
at the medical institute. Very
bright fellow At the domatory
we 6 sit and talk for hours in
Russian- english

Dec 1 | am having a light
affair with Nell Korobka.

Jan 1 New Years | spend at
home of Ella Germain. | think
I'm in love with her. She has
refused my mor dishonourable
advanis, we drink and eat in the
presenec of her family in a very
hospitable atmosfere. Later | go
home drunk and happy. Passing
the river homeward, | decide to
propose to Ella.®

to be continued
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"When the world is pregnant with lies, a
secret long hidden will be revealed."

THE ODIN BROTHERHOOD

by
Mark L. Mirabello, Ph.D.
A description of Odinism in the form of a dialogue:

$11.45 (postpaid) from
Holmes Publishing Group, Postal Box 623, Edmonds,

Factsheel Fve 152

WA 98020
smorgasbord of

VISA/Mastercard telephone (206) 771-2701

 fine tasty magazines.
"Impressively expressed . . ." Drder yourself a acopy foday.
Odinism Today #10 end $6.00 for a sample to:
_ Factsheet Five
A conspiracy of equals :0. Box 170099

an Francisco, CA: 94!17

hipping and handling. Order Yours Today!!!
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SUPPORT THE LEONARD PELTIER DEFENSE

COMMITTEE

Subsribe to The Spirit of Crazy Horse, the official newsletter of the LPDC
Published bi-monthly
Subscription Rates:
$10 per year (6 issues), $20 per year International, $5 for seniors,
Free subscription for prisoners

Send check or money order made out to
Crazy Horse Spirit to:

Leonard Peltier Defense Committee
International Office
PO Box 5823
Lawrence. K8 66044
Tel:(OI21842-5774
Fax:(8I12)842-5796

JFK's LSD Madonna?
In Steamshovel Press Number 10:

a never before published photograph of
JFK and Mary Pinchot Meyer together!

Steamshovel Closes the Case on Gerald
Posner

Carroll Quigley Live! Bill Clinton's
conspiratorial mentor speaks.

JimKeith on the Scientological subtext of
the UFO cosmelogy Gods of Eden

In the Saucer Section: Lars Hansson
discusses Stephen Seagal and the Vegas
UFO Nexus; Masers from Man or Alien?

Much More! $4 plus $1 postage from
Steamshovel Press, POB 23715, St.
Louis, MO 63121 (Back Issues Available.
Subscriptions: $20, four issues)

IN ITS ON-6ITE AUSLHWITZ PLANT,
FARBEN USED SLAVE LABOR TO
MANUFALTURE THE CRY5TALS THAT
FUELEP THE 645 CHAMBERS,

EFORE BECOMING EISENHOWER'S

SECRETARY OF STATE, ATTOR-
NEY JVOWN FPOSTER PULLES WAS
AMERICAN LIAISON TO THE NAZI-
SUPPORTING CHEMICAL CARTEL /6.

JOHN FOSTER'S HOUNGER
BROTHER ALLEN PULLES
WAS ALS50 A PARTNER IN

SULLIVAN ANV CROMWELL.

THE
NAZ|5
ARE MERELY

"‘COGNIZE TO
BE INEVIT-
BLE.

NEVERTHELESS, JOHUN FOSTER
PULLES' LABLES TO FARBEN
BEGAN WITH THE S$ALUTATION:

"HEIL HITLER."

© 1994 by Doug Moench and Brett Ewins. From the forth
coming Big Book of Conspiracies, from Paradox/DC Comics

NOT LONTENT WITH MERE
: CABLES, ALLEN ACTUALLY
{ HEILED HITLER W FERSON.
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Just because
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doesn’t mean
they aren’t
after you.

Joseph Heller
Catch-22
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